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P R O C E E D I N G S  

(Transcript continues i n  sequence from Vo 

DOUGLAS C. MILLER 

1010 

ume 6.) 

was recal led as a witness on behalf o f  Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporation and, having been previously sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as 

follows: 

D I  RECT EXAM1 NATION 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Mr. M i l l e r ,  do you understand tha t  you are s t i l l  

under oath? 

A I do. 

Q Have you prepared and f i l e d  Intervenor d i r e c t  

testimony dated March 17, 2000 consisting o f  14 pages? 

A I have. 

Q Have you also f i l e d  rebuttal  testimony dated June 2, 

2000 consist ing o f  four pages? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Do you have any changes or corrections t o  e i ther  o f  

those two pieces o f  testimony? 

A I do not. 

Q If I were t o  ask you the same questions today, would 

your answers be the same? 

A They would be. 
MR. MELSON: I ' d  ask tha t  Mr. M i l l e r ' s  Intervenor 

d i rec t  testimony and rebuttal  testimony be inserted i n t o  the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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record as though read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show the 

Intervenor d i rec t  and rebuttal  testimony as entered i n t o  the 

record as though read. 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Mr. Miller, you had f i v e  exhib i ts  attached t o  your 

Intervenor d i r e c t  testimony as DCM-9 through DCM-13; i s  t ha t  

correct? 

A That i s  correct. 

Q 

A I do not. 

Do you have any changes t o  those exhib i ts? 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman, I ' d  ask t h a t  those 

exhib i ts  be marked as composite 38. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show DCM-9 through DCM-13? 

MR. MELSON: Yes, s i r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Oh, t h a t ' s  r i g h t ,  13a was the other 

one. Great. Show those marked as composite Exh ib i t  38. 

(Exhibi t  38 marked f o r  i den t i f i ca t i on .  1 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q And you had no exh ib i ts  t o  your rebut ta l  testimony; 

i s  t ha t  correct? 

A That's correct. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

INTERVENOR DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 

DOUGLAS C. MILLER 

ON BEHALF OF 

NOCATEE UTILITY CORPORATION AND DDI, INC. 

DOCKET NOS. 990696-WS AND 992040-WS 

March 17, 2000 

P l e a s e  state your name and business address. 

My name is Douglas C. Miller. My business address is 

14775 St. Augustine Road, Jacksonville, Florida 32258. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am President of England-Thims & Miller, a full 

service civil engineering f i r m ,  I am Engineer of 

Record f o r  the Nocatee development and have performed 

the master planning for Nocatee Utility Corporation 

(NUC) * 

Have you previously filed direct testimony in support 

of NUC's certificate application in these consolidated 

dockets? 

Yes . 
What is the purpose of your intervenor direct 

testimony? 

The purpose of this testimony is to provide some 

history of Intercoastal Utilities, Inc.'s plans for 

-1- 
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serving the territory applied f o r  by NUC and to give my 

assessment of Intercoastal's c u r r e n t  application in 

this docket. I will also respond to some claims made 

in the prefiled testimony submitted by Intercoastal's 

witnesses in support of its application. 

Q .  On whose behalf are you presenting this testimony? 

A, I am testifying on behalf of NUC and its parent 

company, DDI, Inc., both of which have filed objections 

to Intercoastal's certificate application. As Mr, 

Skelton has testified, DDI, Inc, also controls SONOC 

Company, which owns all of the land that will comprise 

the Nocatee development that NUC has applied f o r  

certificates to serve. 

INTERCOASTAL ' S APPLICATION TO ST . JOHNS COUNTY 

Q. Are you familiar with the certificate extension 

application that Intercoastal f i l e d  with St. Johns 

County in March, 1999? 

A. Yes. I participated in that proceeding as an advisor 

to DDI and its attorneys. I also presented expert 

testimony in that case on behalf of DDI, which was one 

of several objectors to Intercoastal's application. 

Q. Did that certificate extension application cover the 

same territory in St. Johns County that is covered by 

Intercoastal's application in t h i s  docket? 

-2- 
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Yes. Intercoastal's application to St. Johns County 

included approximately the same territory in St. Johns 

County t h a t  is at issue in this case. The initial 

filing also included a tract of land located within 

the Marshall Creek development, but Intercoastal's 

application was later amended to delete that portion 

of the proposed territory. 

Please summarize the certificate extension proceeding 

in St. Johns County. 

After Intercoastal filed its certificate extension 

application in March, 1999, several parties filed 

formal objections to the application, including DDI, 

JEA, and the St. Johns County Utility Department. 

The St. Johns County Water and Sewer Authority 

(Authority) held six days of formal hearings on 

Intercoastal's application in June 1999. At the 

conclusion of the hearing, all the parties filed 

proposed orders with the Authority. On August 4, 

1999, the Authority issued a Preliminary Order denying 

Intercoastal's application to extend its certificated 

territory. The Preliminary Order was confirmed by the 

Board of County Commissioners of St. Johns County in a 

Final Order issued on September 7, 1999, I have 

attached copies of these orders to my testimony as 

Exhibit Nos. (DCM-9) and (DCM-10). 

-3- 
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1 Q. Does Intercoastal's current application differ from 

2 the application filed w i t h  S t .  Johns County in 1999? 

3 A. Yes, it d i f f e r s  in a couple of respects. Intercoastal 

4 has now included in its proposed certificated area the 

5 portion of the Nocatee development that lies in Duval 

6 County. Intercoastal also says they now p lan  to serve 

7 the territory West of t h e  Intracoastal Waterway from 

8 new water and wastewater plants built within the 

9 Nocatee development. This contrasts with their 

10 previous plan to provide initial service from existing 

11 plants on the East side of the Intracoastal Waterway. 

12 

13 INTERCOASTAL'S PLAN OF SERVICE 

14 Q. Have you reviewed Intercoastal's current plan f o r  

15 providing service to Nocatee and the other properties 

16 on the West side of the Intracoastal Waterway? 

17 A. Yes. I have reviewed Intercoastal's application and 

18 the prefiled testimony of its witnesses, including the 

19 Conceptual Master Plan attached as an exhibit to Mr. 

20 Jim Miller's testimony. 

21 Q. J u s t  for the record, are related i n  any w a y  to M r .  J i m  

22 Miller? 

23 A. No. 

24 Q. Please summarize what you see as the key features of 

25 Intercoastal's plan of service. 

- 4 -  
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Intercoastal plans to serve Nocatee and other 

developments on the West side of the Intracoastal 

Waterway from new water and wastewater plants to be 

constructed on County Road 210, in approximately the 

middle of Nocatee. Intercoastal plans to provide 

irrigation service to Nocatee with wastewater effluent 

(reuse) produced in its wastewater treatment plant, 

supplemented by groundwater withdrawals when 

irrigation demand exceeds the amount of available 

effluent. Intercoastal proposes wet weather 

discharges to the Intracoastal Waterway (Tolomato 

River, an Outstanding Florida Water) during periods 

when effluent production exceeds reuse demand. 

Intercoastal indicates that it will provide storage in 

open ponds f o r  approximately 3 days of treated 

effluent. 

Do you see any problems w i t h  t h i s  plan of service? 

Yes, This plan of service is inconsistent with the 

strong environmental ethic that has been developed for 

Nocatee and that is reflected in the Application f o r  

Development Approval (ADA) f o r  the project as a 

Development of Regional Impact (DRI) under Chapter 

380.06 of the Florida Statutes, Simply put, the 

landowner and the developer have committed to an 

environmentally sensitive project and that commitment 

-5- 
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is reflected in the way that they have proposed in the 

ADA to provide utility service to Nocatee, I expect 

that the approach to utility service s e t  out in the 

ADA will be incorporated into conditions in the final 

development order for the project. This means that 

the development will not be able to proceed unless 

utility service meets these conditions. I have 

attached a copy of Questions 17 (Water Supply) and 18 

(Wastewater Management) from the ADA as Exhibit No. 

(DCM-11)- 

What are the specific commitments regarding utility 

service that you believe will become conditions of the 

development approval? 

There are several. 

There will be no water or wastewater treatment 

plants located within the boundaries of Nocatee. 

There will be no reliance on groundwater 

withdrawals within the project to meet potable 

water o r  irrigation water demands from the 

pro j ect . 
There will be no effluent discharges to the 

Tolomato River, an Outstanding Florida Water. 

Irrigation demand will be met by reuse of either 

wastewater effluent or stormwater, 

Is NUCIS plan of service consistent with these 

- 6- 
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commi tmen t s ? 

Yes. As I stated in my d i rec t  testimony, NUC will 

obtain water, wastewater and reuse service on a bulk 

basis from JEA. JEA's plants are located off-site. 

On-site groundwater withdrawals will not be required 

to provide utility service; there will be no on-site 

effluent discharges; and irrigation demand will be met 

through a combination of treated effluent provided by 

JEA and on-site stormwater. 

Is Intercoastal's plan of service consistent with 

these commitments? 

No. Intercoastal proposes to construct water and 

wastewater plants within Nocatee and to rely on 

groundwater withdrawals within the project to meet 

potable water demands. Because Intercoastal will have 

insufficient reclaimed effluent to meet irrigation 

demands, it proposes to use groundwater to supplement 

the irrigation supply. And Intercoastal proposes wet 

weather discharges to the Tolomato River. 

In addition to the fact that Intercoastal's plan of 

service is inconsistent w i t h  the commitments made in 

the ADA and the overall environmental e t h i c  for 

Nocatee, have you identified any other questions or 

concerns regarding Intercoastal's Conceptual Master 

Plan? 

-7- 
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Yes. First, Intercoastal's plan to use open ponds f o r  

storage of reuse water is a concern. At Nocatee, 

public access reuse water will be provided f o r  

irrigation to every single family residence. 

Therefore, maintaining reuse water quality is 

paramount and a potential public health issue. Open 

ponds as proposed by Intercoastal are less reliable 

for maintaining water quality. Open ponds are more 

susceptible to contamination from wildlife, algae 

growth, and airborne particulates, as well as 

difficulties in maintaining chlorine residual. For 

these water quality reasons NUC proposes to use the 

more expensive, but more secure, closed storage tanks 

f o r  reuse storage. 

Second, Intercoastal's Master Plan indicates 

construction of a water treatment plant in 2002. This 

is n o t  consistent with the proposed development plans  

f o r  Nocatee, which will require construction water f o r  

line pressurization and other uses beginning in 2001. 

Third, the wastewater force mains proposed by 

Intercoastal f o r  Phase 1 are inadequately sized to 

meet the needs of the first phase of the Nocatee 

development. 

Fourth, Intercoastal has included Walden Chase in 

its application, whereas Walden Chase has an agreement 

-8-  
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with St. Johns County to provide water and sewer 

services and these services will be provided as soon 

as May, 2000. 

Fifth, the Conceptual Master Plan f o r  

Intercoastal includes a reuse demand of only 300,000 

gallons per day for the go l f  courses, Our experience 

has been that during dry weather months the demand 

could be 650,000 gallons per  day. This would make 

Intercoastal's reuse system more reliant upon 

groundwater because the wastewater effluent generated 

can not meet the reuse demands. 

Q. In your professional opinion, does Intercoastal have 

the technical ability to serve the Nocatee 

development? 

A. No, While Intercoastal may be capable of constructing 

and operating water and wastewater utility systems, 

their conceptual master plan f o r  serving Nocatee is 

inconsistent with the regulatory requirements that 

will be imposed on the development. As such, that 

plan is not technically feasible. 

OTHER ISSmS 

Q. Intercoastal's certificate extension application 

includes the Walden Chase development near the 

Southeast corner of U.S. 1 and County Road 210, 

-9- 
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whereas NUC's application does no t .  How will service 

be provided to this area if Intercoastal's application 

is denied? 

Walden Chase has an agreement with the County to 

provide water and wastewater service through a bulk 

service arrangement between JEA and the County. In 

May of this year, initial service will be provided to 

Walden Chase from the St. Johns County owned water and 

wastewater plants at Nease High School. I have 

included the agreement between Walden Chase and the 

County, and a letter regarding interim service from 

the facilities at Nease High School, as Exhibits 

(DCM-12) and (DCM-13). 

Although JEA can probably provide more details, 

I understand that the water transmission line and 

wastewater force main to ultimately serve Walden Chase 

are under construction and should be completed later 

this year. These are the same lines to which NUC will 

ultimately connect to provide service to Nocatee. 

Thus by the time the Commission votes  on 

Intercoastal's application, Walden Chase will already 

be obtaining service through the County/JEA 

arrangement. Furthermore, it should be noted that 

Intercoastal's plan includes the provision of reuse 

water to Walden Chase, but that project has not been 

-10- 
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designed or constructed to include reuse water, 

A t  pages 10-12 of his testimony, Mr. Forrester 

describes Intercoastal's participation in the St. 

Johns R i v e r  Water Management District's process 

leading up to the 2020 Water Plan. What importance 

should the Commission attach to that participation? 

I would not give that participation any weight in the 

current certificate proceedings, The 2020 Water Plan, 

which is scheduled f o r  adopted by the District in 

April 2000, is a general attempt to project supply and 

demand f o r  water resources in the District f o r  

planning purposes only. It does not give  any 

participant either a consumptive use permit or a r i g h t  

to serve any particular area. Those matters remain to 

be decided in permitting proceedings and cases such as 

this before the Commission, 

Why didn't NUC participate in the development of the 

2 020 Water Plan? 

Because neither NUC nor the Nocatee development 

existed at the time that process commenced. 

Mr. Forrester testifies a t  pages 9-10 that 

Intercoastal's plan of service meets the "Local 

Sources First" policy in the District's 2020 Water 

P l a n .  In t h i s  regard, how does Intercoastal's plan of 

service compare with NUC's? 

-11- 
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The Nocatee franchise area includes land in both Duval 

and St. Johns County. Groundwater to serve the 

Nocatee development will be withdrawn from the JEA 

water grid in Duval County. This is consistent with 

the " l o c a l  sources first" policy, More importantly, 

however, the NUC plan recognizes the Water Caution 

Areas outlined in the 2020 Water Plan in St. Johns 

County, which identifies the need for additional 

potable water sources for St, Johns County. The NUC 

plan provides this recommended additional potable 

water source by connecting the Nocatee development in 

both counties to the JEA water g r i d .  

M r ,  Forrester seems to imply a t  pages 10 and 11 of h i s  

direct testimony that  there was some effort to 'lhidelv 

the  Nocatee development from Intercoasta l  so that  i t  

could not t a k e  Nocatee i n t o  account i n  its planning 

process. Would that  be an accurate conclusion? 

No. As is the case with any large r e a l  estate 

development, a premature announcement before the 

pro jec t  has been well defined can create speculation 

and concern that often translates into opposition to 

the project. It is t r u e  that Nocatee w a s  not publicly 

announced until April, 1999 and that prior to that 

date a l l  consultants and others involved in the 

project were charged with keeping it confidential. It 

-12- 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 0  

21 

22 

2 3  

2 4  

2 5  

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

is wrong to suggest that this confidentiality had 

anything to do with Intercoastal. 

P r i o r  to forming NUC, did DDI ever consider seeking 

utility service from Intercoastal? 

In the early planning stages f o r  Nocatee that option 

was considered and rejected. 

Why? 

Intercoastal's existing territory and facilities are 

located across the Intracoastal Waterway from Nocatee. 

Our preliminary analysis suggested that it would not 

be economical for Intercoastal to extend its lines 

across the waterway to serve Nocatee. Given that, 

service would have to be obtained either from existing 

facilities on the East side of the waterway or through 

construction of new facilities. If new construction 

was required, Intercoastal would not bring anything to 

the table that could not be accomplished better 

through an affiliated utility that shared the 

project's environmental ethic. 

In addition, we were aware of the frustration of 

a nearby smaller developer who had been unsuccessfully 

trying for several years to obtain service from 

Intercoastal. His experience led us to question 

whether Intercoastal could cost-effectively serve West 

of the Intracoastal Waterway. 

-1 ?- A d  
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Please summarize your testimony. 

Based on my evaluation, I believe that NUC's p lan  of 

service is superior to Intercoastal. In fact, 

Intercoastal's plan is infeasible in light of the 

expected conditions that will be placed on Nocatee in 

its f i n a l  development order. The Commission should 

therefore award NUC its requested service territory 

and should deny Intercoastal's application to serve 

that territory. 

Does that conclude your intervenor direct testimony? 

Yes it does. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF 

DOUGLAS C, MILLER 

ON BEHALF OF 

NOCATEE UTILITY CORPORATION AND DDI, INC. 

DOCKET NOS. 990696-WS AND 992040-WS 

June 2, 2000 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Douglas C. Miller. My business address is 

14775 St. Augustine Road, Jacksonville, Flor ida  32258. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am President of England-Thims & Miller, a full 

service civil engineering firm. I am Engineer of 

Record f o r  the Nocatee development and have performed 

the master planning f o r  Nocatee Utility Corporation 

(NUC). 

Have you previously filed direct and intervenor 

testimony these consolidated dockets? 

Yes . 
What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony? 

My rebuttal testimony responds to some statements or 

positions in the prefiled testimony of Intercoastal's 

witnesses M.L. Forrester and Jim Miller. 

Mr. J i m  Miller states at page 7 of his intervenor 
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testimony that Intercoastal can meet and/or comply w i t h  

all environmental concerns expressed by Nocatee's 

Application for Development Approval. Do you agree? 

No. Although Intercoastal continues to modify its 

Conceptual Master Plan in an attempt to make it l ook  

more l i k e  NUC's proposal, there are s t i l l  at least 

three areas in which Intercoastal's plan of service 

does not comply with the requirements that are expected 

to be imposed by the Development Order f o r  the project. 

First, no potable water wells will be allowed in 

Nocatee and a water treatment plant is not 

proposed. 

Second, no wastewater treatment plant will be 

allowed in Nocatee and no wet weather discharge 

into t h e  Intracoastal Waterway will be allowed. 

Third, no ground water as a primary source of 

irrigation water will be allowed in Nocatee. 

Reuse and stormwater a re  the only primary 

irrigation sources allowed. 

The Intercoastal Utility Plan violates all three of 

these project covenants. 

M r .  J i m  Miller's Conceptual Master Plan (Exhibit JM-2 

at page 3-14 to 3-15) proposes to provide reuse to 

Nocatee at least in part through a reclaimed w a t e r  main 

to be constructed across the Intracoastal Waterway. Do 
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you believe that this is an appropriate plan of 

service? 

No. We believe the c o s t  and the environmental impacts 

of this pipeline have been understated. In addition, 

Intercoastal does not own or control the proposed 

pipeline route from Nocatee to the proposed 

Intercoastal Waterway crossing. 

Mr. Forrester concludes at pages 3 to 5 of his 

intervenor testimony it is more beneficial to the 

public f o r  Intercoastal, as an existing utility, to 

serve the Nocatee development than for the Commission 

to certify NUC as a new utility to serve that 

territory. Do you agree? 

No. My prior testimony and that of other NUC witnesses 

gives a number of reasons why it is in the public 

interest for the Commission to grant certificates to 

NUC, rather than to Intercoastal, to serve the Nocatee 

development. Mr. Forrester's view that service by an 

existing utility is preferable to service by a new 

utility does not change my conclusion. 

In this regard, I would l i k e  to make two 

observations. First, given the size of the Nocatee 

development, a separate utility to serve j u s t  t h a t  

project will be of sufficient size to enjoy economies 

of scale. In fact, NUC will be approximately three 
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times as large as Intercoastal's existing customer 

base. Therefore, any public policy against the 

establishment of small systems is not violated by 

granting a certificate to NUL Second, because 

Intercoastal's plan of service calls f o r  entirely new 

treatment facilities to serve Nocatee, Intercoastal is 

essentially proposing to operate two separate utility 

systems -- its existing system to the E a s t  of the 

Intracoastal Waterway and a new system to the West of 

the waterway. In these circumstances, the normal 

arguments in favor of a single utility cease to apply. 

P l e a s e  summarize your testimony. 

Although Intercoastal continues to modify its plan of 

service, I believe that NUC's plan of service is still 

superior to Intercoastal's. Even with the most recent 

changes, Intercoastal's plan is still infeasible in 

light of the expected conditions that will be placed on 

Nocatee in its final development order. The Commission 

should therefore award NUC its requested service 

territory and should deny Intercoastal's application to 

serve that territory. 

Does that conclude .your rebuttal testimony? 

Yes it does. 
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MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman, ear ly i n  the hearing, 

Commissioner Jaber asked i n  l i g h t  o f  the withdrawal o f  the 

County i f  there was anybody who could describe the County's 

plan o f  service and t a l k  about Nocatee's view on the plan o f  

service. Mr. M i l l e r  i s  tha t  person. He had prepared and f i l e d  

addit ional rebuttal  testimony which does exact ly tha t .  

not - -  given the  withdrawal o f  the County, I had not intended 

t o  o f f e r  that ,  but I am per fec t l y  w i l l i n g  t o  do so i f  you would 

l i k e  t o  have that  information i n  the record, or  I ' d  use t h i s  

opportunity t o  remind you tha t  t h i s  would be the person t o  ask 

questions t o  . 

I have 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Thank you for giv ing me the 

opportunity t o  ask addit ional questions, but I d i d  want t o  ask 

you-al l  what t h i s  addit ional rebuttal  i s .  So we need t o  

disregard the addit ional rebuttal? 

MR. MELSON: The addit ional rebuttal  i s  rebuttal  t o  

the testimony o f  Mr. Young from Monday o f  l a s t  week. He f i l e d  

on Monday; we rebutted on Thursday. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

that .  So thank you, but no thanks. 

BY MR. MELSON: 

So you do not need an answer t o  

Q Mr. M i l l e r ,  would you please summarize your 

Intervenor d i  rec t  and rebuttal  testimony, p7 ease . 
A I would be happy to .  Commissioners, the testimony 

tha t  I ' m  summarizing today points out the shortcomings o f  
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Intercoastal Uti1 i t i es '  plan o f  service compared t o  Nocatee 
Uti 1 i t y  Company's pl an o f  services for the Nocatee franchise 
area, b u t  more importantly, my testimony shows t h a t  ICU's plan 

of service i s  not implementable. ICU's plan of service f o r  

this area has changed several times since the i n i t i a l  service 
was proposed i n  1999. However, I will focus my testimony on 
the current plan o f  service, w h i c h  is  spelled out i n  the 
revised March 2000 conceptual master plan prepared by 

Mr. Jim Miller for ICU. 

You have heard much about the Nocatee developm n t  
order and i t s  conditions related t o  u t i l i t y  service. The 
development order is the binding instrument t h a t  establishes 
the development rights on Nocatee land t h a t  creates a need f o r  

service. 
Nocatee, there is no need for service. The ICU plan o f  service 
viol ates a1 1 four o f  the u t i  1 i t y -  re1 ated development conditions 
imposed by both Duval County and S t .  Johns County. 

I f  you cannot meet the development conditions f o r  

Mr. Forrester and Mr. Jim Miller have both 

characterized i n  their testimony t h a t  Nocatee somehow 
orchestrated these devel opment order conditions speci f i  call y t o  
exclude ICU from providing u t i l i t y  service. As a professional 
i n  charge of developing the plan of service for Nocatee, I am 
here t o  tel l  you unequivocably and w i t h o u t  reservation t h a t  

these four u t i 1  i t y  development order conditions have absolutely 
nothing t o  do w i t h  ICU, b u t  they do have everything t o  do w i t h  
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securing the development r i gh ts  t o  b u i l d  a c i t y  f o r  35,000 

residents. 

I ' d  l i k e  t o  review each o f  the four development order 

conditions w i th  you, and go over where they originated from, 
how Intercoastal U t i  1 i t i e s '  plan o f  service v io la tes those 

conditions, and l a s t l y ,  why they cannot be changed. 

The f i r s t  condit ion i s  t ha t  no potable water wel ls 

can be on-si te.  And as I go through these, I ' d  l i k e  t o  remind 

you tha t  we received a three-to-two vote before the County 

Commission f o r  t h i s  approval f o r  a c i t y  o f  35,000 people. No 

potable water we1 1 s can be on -s i t e  - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me in te r rup t  you. I keep 

hearing t h i s  three-two vote. Are you representing tha t  i t  was 

three t o  two t o  approve even w i th  these requirements, and t h a t  

the two votes were two votes against - - were against even w i th  

the requirements, or  could we in te rp re t  t ha t  they thought t h a t  

the requirements went too  f a r ,  and they would have supported i t  

regard1 ess? 

THE WITNESS: I would say the two votes tha t  voted 

against, i f  we had promised t o  de l i ver  a wheelbarrow f u l l  o f  

gold t o  the County Commission's doorstep every day f o r  

25 years, would not have voted f o r  t h i s  project .  So I guess 

t h a t ' s  my best characterization. The three votes would not , 

have voted - -  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I guess j u s t  l e t  me say t h a t  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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from a resident o f  a northern ru ra l  county which would love t o  

see any kind o f  development, i t ' s  j u s t  d i f f i c u l t  t o  understand, 

I guess, some o f  the local  p o l i t i c s .  

THE WITNESS: I f  you could only have been there. I f  

I could answer the second par t  o f  your question on the three 

af f i rmat ive votes. I n  essence, what I'm t e s t i f y i n g  i s ,  the 

three af f i rmat ive votes would not have been a f f i rmat ive  votes 

had these four conditions not been opposed on the pro ject ;  

therefore, we would not have had a development order, and i n  

fact ,  we would not be here today. 

Intercoastal ' s  plan o f  service, as you know, poses 14 

potable water wel ls  w i th in  S t .  Johns County i n  c lear v i o l a t i o n  

o f  tha t  development order and those a f f i rmat ive  votes. The 

second condit ion i s  tha t  no wet weather discharges t o  the 

Tolomato River o r  i t s  t r i b u t a r i e s  w i l l  be allowed from Nocatee. 

9s you know, the support and endorsement o f  two environmental 

organizations - - or environmental organizations are c r i t i c a l  t o  

get a project  o f  t h i s  s ize and magnitude approved. The two 

groups, the GAIN group, t h a t ' s  Guana Area Intracoastal Network, 

and the Audubon Society both endorse the environmental goals o f  

t h i s  project  w i th  one exception, and tha t  was, they were 

adamantly opposed t o  wet weather discharges t o  the Intracoastal 

Waterway. 

In addit ion, the Chairman o f  the Board o f  County 

Commissioners was opposed t o  t h i s  discharge which i s  one o f  the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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an o f  service proposes t o  

day o f  wet weather 

discharge t o  the Intracoastal Waterway; t ha t  would be the 

1.2 mi l l ion  gallons tha t  they are authorized from the east side 

and the 5.2 gallons a day tha t  would be generated w i th in  the 

Nocatee project .  And rea l i ty  i s ,  during wet weather, i t  

doesn't seem l i k e  it now, but we do have wet weather, t ha t  

there w i l l  be times, long periods, when we get continual r a i n  

where reuse cannot be discharged. There's only 1 imited storage 

that  can be affordably provided. There w i l l  be mul t ip le  days 

when the 6.4 m i l l i o n  gallons a day a t  b u i l d  out w i l l  have t o  be 

discharged under t h e i r  plan i n  v i o l a t i o n  o f  the development 

order. 

MR. WHARTON: Mr. Chairman, we're on point  one o f  

four j u s t  on t h i s  part ,  and we're over the f i v e  minutes even 

taken i n t o  account Commi ssioner Deason ' s questi on. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I would encourage you t o  note t h i s  

get it t o  the leve l  o f  a summary i s  your summary, and i f  we can 

would be great. 

A I w i l l  speed i t  up. 

and wastewater plants a re  proh, 

The t h i r d  issue i s  on -s i t e  water 

b i  ted. The real  i t y  w i th  no wet 

weather discharge avai 1 ab1 e and no we1 1 s on- s i t e  coup1 ed wi th  

the fac t  o f  the previous problems o f  odor and aesthetics i n  

Ponte Vedra, t h i s  was a Commissioner's request t h a t  r e a l l y  made 

sense since we couldn' t  do wel ls o r  wet weather discharge. The 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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l a s t  issue, 100 percent committment fo r  reuse 

groundwater i r r i g a t i o n .  Projects o f  t h i s  sca 

and no 
e require the 

support o f  the environmental agencies o f  the State, both o f  the 

Department o f  Envi ronmental Protection and the Water Management 

D i s t r i c t .  Early on i n  the plan o f  development, our team met 
d t h  the DEP Secretary Struhs and h i s  s t a f f  and Henry Dean, the 

executive d i rector  o f  the Water Management D i s t r i c t .  Both 

agencies were very enthused and supportive o f  the environmental 

plan we had prepared; however, they both wanted a commitment t o  

100 percent reuse from day one - -  
MR. WHARTON: A t  t h i s  point ,  Mr. Chairman, I t h ink  

we're a lso  get t ing  outside the testimony. I don ' t  t h ink  what 

he's j u s t  t a l k ing  here i s  any o f  the testimony he's sponsoring 

r i g h t  now. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Where are we i n  terms - -  your po int  

j u s t  now was w i th  regard t o  - - 
THE WITNESS: Well, I believe I t e s t i f i e d  tha t  we had 

mu1 t i p 1  e meetings and v is ion ing processes, and t h i s  was j u s t  

elaborating on tha t  w i th  the various governmental agencies. 

MR. WHARTON: Well, there i t  i s .  There you go. 

That's the problem. We're elaborating on the testimony i n  the 

summary. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Again, I would - - 
THE WITNESS: I understand. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Get t o  a summary. 
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A Okay. Secondly, on t h i s  issue of 100 percent reuse 

and no ground water discharge, the project ions o f  reuse 

avai lable tha t  Mr. Jim M i l l e r  has prepared i n  h i s  document are 

flawed. I n  conclusion, a f te r  working on t h i s  development 

approvals and plan o f  service fo r  Nocatee f o r  three years, i t  

i s  my professional opinion tha t  the development order 

modifications required t o  implement Intercoastal U t i l i t i e s '  

plan o f  service are unattainable, and therefore, Intercoastal 

U t i l i t i e s '  plan o f  service i s  not implementable. That 

concl udes my summary. 

MR. MELSON: Tender the witness f o r  cross. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . M r .  Menton. 

MR. MENTON: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Korn. 

MR. KORN: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Mr . Wharton. 

CROSS EXAM I NATION 

BY MR WHARTON : 

Q Mr. Mi l l e r ,  we've heard a l o t  o f  testimony about the 

To1 omato R i  ver . What i s the To1 omato River? 

A The Tolomato River i s  a por t ion  o f  the  Intracoastal 

Waterway adjacent t o  the Nocatee pro ject  and f a l l s  t o  the 
south. 

Q Is t ha t  a name tha t  i s  popularly used for  the 

Intracoastal Waterway south o f  the 210 bridge? 
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A 

Q 

I would say so, yes. 

Okay. S i r ,  you've talked qui te a b i t  about how you 

evolve from the  groundwater study plan t o  the conditions tha t  

u l t imate ly  ended up i n  the development order. I s n ' t  it t rue  

tha t  i t  wasn't - -  you d i d n ' t  consider tha t  groundwater study 

moot u n t i l  you located JEA as a bulk supplier? 

A No, t ha t ' s  not correct. The - -  
Q Okay. Let me ask you a question. Do you reca l l  t ha t  

you had your deposition taken on March 1, 2000? 

A I do. 

Q And do you reca l l  a t  that  t ime tha t  you were s i t t i n g  

i n  tha t  deposition as the corporate representative o f  Nocatee? 

A I do. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  Let me ask you i f  you reca l l  the 

fo l lowing exchange a t  Page 49, Line 20. 

Answer: Well, the water supply plan was something 

tha t  was developed as an evaluation o f  what the water supply 

was avai lable i n  tha t  area. 

Question: That 's the groundwater - - 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Excuse. 

MR. MELSON: He s t a r t s  reading answers. t r e a l l y  

would help if he would read the question tha t  goes wi th  the 

f i r s t  answer. That's the second t ime he's started i n  the 

middle o f  an answer without l e t t i n g  the witness know what - -  
MR. WHARTON: That ' s because a1 1 I ' m  doing i s  
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providing context t o  the statement I r e a l l y  care about, but 

t h a t ' s  f ine.  

BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q A t  Page 69, Line 18, Question: W i l l  you help me 

understand what those two things are? 

Answer: Well, the water supply plan was something 

that  was developed as an evaluation o f  what the water supply 

was avai lable i n  tha t  area. 

Question: That s the ground water supply development 

p l  an? 

Answer: Correct , whi ch i f imp1 emented would have 

been a component o f  the overal l  water  resource protect ion plan. 

Since tha t  has been abandoned, the on -s i t e  wells have been 

abandoned as an al ternat ive.  I t  i s  now no longer a par t  o f  

that .  I n  fact ,  i t  i s  j u s t  the opposite. I n  essence, i t  i s  not 

anticipated i n  the plan because there are no wel ls projected. 

Question: So locat ing JEA as a potent ia l  source, as 

we've ta lked about today, allowed t h a t  plan t o  become moot, f o r  

lack o f  a bet ter  phrase? 

Answer: Yes. 

Do you stand by t ha t  testimony? 

Yes, but  I don' t  t h ink  t h a t ' s  the question you asked A 

me. I th ink  you asked me, i s  f ind ing  JEA was the reason tha t  

we abandoned the water wells on-s i te .  And my answer was, no, 

it was not. The reason we abandoned the water wel ls on -s i t e  
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was because we could not get three af f i rmat ive votes t o  approve 

a development order w i th  water wells on-s i te ;  therefore, we 

then began t o  look a t  alternatives. And tha t  i s  why we sought 

out the JEA as a potent ia l  water supply provider. 

Q So i t  i s  your testimony today tha t  loca t ing  JEA as a 

potent ia l  source was not what allowed the water supply plan t o  

become moot? 
A Well, i t  was from the perspective tha t  loca t ing  JEA 

a1 1 owed the development t o  proceed. 

locate an a l ternat ive source, i t  was my understanding t h a t  we 

would not be able t o  get the pro ject  approved, so we would have 

had t o  1 ook for another source. 

I f  we had not been able t o  

Q 

wrong? 

Do you th ink  tha t  the court reporter took t h i s  down 

A Well, I don' t  know, M r .  Wharton. I t ' s  been - -  You 

deposed me four times, and so, obviously, I don' t  remember 

every ti me . 
Q Okay. So - - wel l ,  I wasn't deposing you on t h i s  day, 

was I? I was deposing Nocatee, and they sent you. 

A It f e l t  a l o t  l i k e  me. 

Q Okay. And i t  looked a l o t  l i k e  you, and i t  sounded a 

l o t  l i k e  you. So does tha t  mean you don ' t  stand by t h i s  

testimony? 

A I'm sorry, I do stand by the testimony. I'm t r y i n g  

t o  give a c l a r i f i c a t i o n .  
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I th ink  you've done tha t  i n  abundance. 

uated whether i f by some circumstance 

i n t o  a s imi lar  agreement w i th  JEA as NUC 

has whether Intercoastal could meet the environmental e th i c  

tha t  you've t e s t i f i e d  the development has? 

A I don't know there's been any plan o f  service 

provided by Intercoastal for me t o  review t o  render an opinion 

on t h a t  . 
Q So i n  other words, the answer would be yes t o  my 

question? You have not evaluated that .  

A 

Q So tha t  means yes? 

A That means I have not evaluated it. 

There's been nothing t o  evaluate. 

MR. WHARTON: I ' d  ask you t o  i ns t ruc t  the witness t o  

answer the question. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Restate the question. 

MR. WHARTON: 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I ' m  sorry, restate the question. 

I t ' s  r i g h t  i n  the prehearing order. 

BY MR . WHARTON : 

Okay. You would agree, you have not evaluated - - Q 
i sn ' t it t rue  tha t  you have not eval uated whether Intercoastal 

could meet the environmental e th ics o f  the development i f  by 

some circumstance they entered i n t o  a s im i la r  agreement as JEA 

has w i th  NUC now? 

A I have not made tha t  evaluation. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1041 

Q And you haven't evaluated In tercoasta l 's  operational 

o r  management competency, and you don' t  have an opinion i n  tha t  

regard; isn't t ha t  true? 

A That i s  t rue.  

Q Do you have any document i n  your possession tha t  

indicates tha t  the County Commission would not have approved 

the development p l  an i f i t  i ncl uded on- s i t e  we1 1 s? 

A I do not have any document, no. 

Q Do you agree t h a t  the County Commission recent ly 

approved a plan o f  service t o  Nocatee by S t .  Johns County t h  t 

would have involved withdrawal o f  a l l  the water t o  serve the 

Nocatee development from w i th in  S t .  Johns County and t o  provide 

the sewage treatment service from wells tha t  are located w i th in  

S t .  Johns County? 

A The County, i s  my understanding, d i d  not approve a 

plan o f  service. They were - - reviewed a plan o f  service tha t  

showed well f i e l d s  approximately 15 miles away from Nocatee and 

a wastewater treatment p l  ant approximately 20 m i  1 es south o f  

Nocatee. But I th ink  even the County's plan o f  service 

respected the devel opment order conditions w i th  no we1 1 s 

on-si te,  no water plants on-s i te ,  no wastewater p lants  on-s i te ,  

and no discharges t o  the Tolomato River. 

Q That's an a r t fu l  answer, but  the question i s :  Do you 

understand t h a t  the County Commission - -  f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  you 

don' t  understand the County Commission approved t h a t  plan o f  
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service a week ago Tuesday? 

A My understanding i s ,  what they d i d  was approve a 

resolut ion tha t  created an exclusive service area, and t h a t  - -  

a t  t h a t  same meeting - -  w e l l ,  I guess i t ' s  a moot point .  On 

the purchase o f  Intercoastal,  they approved a resolut ion t o  

proceed set t ing a publ ic hearing as required by statue f o r  the 

purchase o f  a pr ivate u t i l i t y .  That's my understanding o f  what 

occurred a t  tha t  meeting. 

Q You don' t  understand tha t  there were three things on 

the agenda tha t  day, and t ha t  the t h i r d ,  which went along w i th  

the resolut ion, was tha t  they approved tha t  plan o f  service? 

A Just the opposite. I mean, as I heard the 

Commissioners, t ha t  there might be other a1 ternat ives besides 

tha t  plan, and they weren't married t o  the plan, but they d i d  

proceed wi th  the exclusive franchise area designation. 

Q But you agree t h a t  the plan o f  service tha t  the 

Commission considered tha t  day involved a l l  o f  the water t o  

serve the Nocatee development and a l l  o f  the wastewater 

treatment fac i  1 i t i e s  t o  serve the Nocatee development being 

located i n  S t .  Johns County? 

A Yes, I did. I mean, I heard tha t ,  and o f  course, I 

t e s t i f i e d  tha t  I d i d n ' t  t h ink  tha t  was implementable e i ther .  

But they d i d  present a plan o f  service. 

the only plan o f  service t h a t  they have i n  mind. 

I don' t  th ink  i t  was 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Excuse me, I 'm sorry. Why 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 
2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
11 

12 

13 
14 

15 

16 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1043 

would tha t  not be implementable, i n  your opinion? 

THE WITNESS: Well, there’s a number o f  reasons. 

One, they proposed a 9.5 m i l l i o n  gal lon well  f i e l d  t o  - -  about 

approximately 15 miles away from the Nocatee project .  

west o f  the World Golf Vi l lage. That par t i cu la r  area has some 

s ign i f i can t  water q u a l i t y  problems, and there i s  l e t t e r s  from 

the Water Management D i s t r i c t  saying tha t  w e l l  f i e l d s  i n  

general i n  tha t  area cannot be devel oped t o  - - beyond about 2.5 

m i l l i o n  gallons a day. 

I t ’ s  

The second problem was, they were proposing the U.S . l  

cor r idor  as a u t i l i t y  corr idor ,  and the Department o f  

Transportation issued a statement tha t  they d i d n ’ t  believe 

there was any room i n  t h a t  corr idor t o  construct any more 

u t i l i t y  l ines.  

The other issue was the reuse issue. The County 

could not construct reuse - - d i d  not have reuse avai lable t o  

serve Nocatee. And they proposed a storm water treatment p lan t  

t o  t r e a t  storm water on the Nocatee project .  The problem w i th  

t h a t  i s ,  there j u s t  simply won’t be enough storm water 

avai lable t o  meet the needs. The storm water i s  only a very 

small f rac t ion  o f  what would be needed, and so they would be 

forced t o  r e l y  on groundwater f o r  reuse. And tha t  was a c lear  

v io la t i on  and a c lear concern. I: ta lked t o  most o f  the County 

Commissioners about tha t ,  and I don’t believe they r e a l l y  i n  

t h e i r  hearts adopted t h a t  plan o f  service. 
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So t h a t ' s  j u s t  some - -  i t ' s  a l l  ac tua l l y  i n  my 

rebuttal  testimony tha t  - -  t o  t h e i r  plan tha t  was withdrawn, so 

I guess my rebuttal  testimony i s  withdrawn as wel l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me fol low up then. I ' m  

j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  understand. So i n  your opinion, the County 

whi 1 e denying Nocatee, the developer , the opportunity t o  d r i  11 

wells f o r  potable water, i f  they got the t e r r i t o r y ,  they were 

going t o  d r i l l  wel ls f o r  nonpotable water t o  use f o r  

i rri gat i on. 

THE WITNESS: That i s  t h e i r  plan o f  service. Their 

claim was - -  l i k e ,  Nocatee has a backup well t h a t ' s  approved in 
the development order; t h e i r  claim was, i t ' s  j u s t  a backup 

w e l l .  But i n  practice, when you review the volumes o f  storm 

water avai 1 able versus the volume o f  i r r i g a t i o n  required, t ha t  

backup well  would have had t o  have been used as the primary 

source o f  water. 

MR. WHARTON: I take i t  back. I do have another 

quest i on. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: One, s i r .  

BY MR . WHARTON : 

Q S i r ,  i n  t h i s  testimony tha t  you caused t o  be i l e d  on 

May 3rd, 2001, which i s  not going t o  be a1 1 owed because the 

County withdrew, you have referred t o  t h a t  throughout as the 

County' s p l  an o f  servi  ce, haven ' t you? 

A Yes, I have. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 
19 

20 

21  

22 

23 

24 

25 

1045 

Q So you do understand tha t  t ha t  plan o f  service tha t  

was attached t o  Mr. Young's testimony, tha t  was the plan of 

service you and I were discussing a few moments ago, i s  the 

County' s p l  an o f  service? 

A That i s  the County plan o f  service tha t  was presented 

a t  the hearing and I was provided a copy o f .  

MR. WHARTON: Okay. That 's a l l  we have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: S t a f f .  

MS. CIBULA: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Commissioners Redi rect .  

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Just t o  be clear, i t ' s  your understanding the plan o f  

service was presented but  not formally approved; i s  t ha t  

correct? 

A That i s  my understanding. 

Q You were asked about the - -  what i s  

considered t o  be the s ta r t i ng  point  o f  the To 

I th ink  you said the County Road 210 bridge. 

t o  tha t  on the map f o r  us? 

A (Witness complies.) 

common1 y 

omato River, and 

Could you po in t  

Q And can you point  on the map t o  where the 

Intercoastal ' s ex is t ing  d i  scharge i s? 

A (Witness complies.) 

Q And you can s i t  down, and I'll ask you a question. 
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I s  there t i d a l  act ion i n  the Intracoastal Waterway which would 

cause discharges a t  Intercoastal ' s ex is t ing  discharge point  t o  

essent ia l ly  come down i n t o  the Tolomato River? 

A Yes - -  
MR. WHARTON: I ' m  going t o  object t ha t  t h i s  i s  

outside the scope o f  cross. 

Tolomato River was, nothing else. Now we're ge t t ing  i n t o  t i d a l  

act ion as i t  re1 ates t o  Intercoastal ' s present discharge. 

I j u s t  asked him where the 

MR. MELSON: Commissioners, the only relevance o f  the 

To1 omato River i s  the devel opment order condit ion t h a t  

prohib i ts  discharges t o  the To1 omato River o r  i t s  t r i b u t a r i e s  . 
Mr. Wharton obviously, i n  my opinion, asked the question t o  t r y  

t o  frame a clever argument i n  the b r i e f  t ha t  h i s  discharge 

point  i s  north o f  County Road 210 and, therefore, does not 

v io la te  the development order. 

witness ' s understanding o f  whether d-i scharge a t  t h a t  po int  

a f fects  the Tolomato River or i t s  t r i b u t a r i e s  which i s  - -  

I'm trying t o  f i n d  out t h i s  

MR. WHARTON: Well - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me, excuse me. I understand 

d i d n ' t  cover i t  i n  cross, and 

witness d i d  get i n t o  whether 

s permittable pursuant t o  

M r .  Chairman. This i s  the 

clever argument. I don' t  want t o  get i n t o  a compl iment 
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exchange w i th  Mr. Melson, but i f  they wanted t o  say, wel l ,  

you r e  not real  1 y d i  schargi ng i nto the To1 omato R i  ver , but 

here's th i s ,  they should have done tha t  i n  t h e i r  testimony. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: He d i d  not address t h i s  speci f ic  

condition. I w i l l  al low you t o  cover what he covers. And as 

t o  whether o r  not there are reasons why - - wel l ,  not  the 

spec i f i c  reason, but whether or  not the Intercoastal plan i s  

permittable given under the conditions o f  the D R I .  

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Given the condit ion o f  the DRI  tha t  p roh ib i ts  wet 

weather discharges t o  the Tolomato River or i t s  t r ibu tar ies ,  do 

you bel ieve - - 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Be careful - -  excuse me. You 

always be careful the leverage you give good lawyers. 

MR. MELSON: That's what the development order says. 

I ' m  j u s t  quoting the development order. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. 

MR. MELSON: I t  has been o f f i c i a l l y  recognized. 

Given tha t  condit ion in the development order - -  
well, I can ask the witness i f  t h a t ' s  the condit ion. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : R i  ght . 
THE WITNESS: It i s  the  condit ion. The Tolomato and 

i t s  t r ibu tar ies ,  no wet weather discharge i s  allowed. 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Given tha t  condit ion, does a plan o f  service t h a t  
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involves a discharge a t  Intercoastal 's  ex is t ing  o u t f a l l ,  i n  

your opinion, comply w i th  tha t  devel opment order? 

MR. WHARTON: Same objection, Mr. Chairman. 

A It does not - - 
MR. WHARTON: I t ' s  outside the scope, and I move t o  

s t r i k e  the answer. A l l  I asked i s  where the Tolomato River 

s tar ted 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I'll allow the question. Go ahead. 

It i s  not i n  compliance because the Intracoastal t o  A 

the north i s  the t r i b u t a r y  t h a t  feeds the Tolomato River, so 

the discharge point  t h a t ' s  proposed i n  the Intercoastal 

U t i l i t i e s '  plan i s  t o  a t r i bu ta ry ,  the Tolomato River. 

MR. MELSON: That concludes my red i rect .  And I would 

move Exhib i t  38. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show Exh ib i t  38 

i s  admitted. 

(Exhibit  38 admitted i n t o  the record. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you 

(Witness excused. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We'l l break f o r  lunch and come back 

a t  1:30, and l e t ' s  k ind  o f  c i r c l e  a l i t t l e  b i t  t o  see how l a t e  

we th ink  we w i l l  go, when we return.  

(Lunch recess ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We'l l  go back on the record and 

continue wi th  Intervenor testimony, and Ms. Swain you are up. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 
4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
16 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1049 

DEBORAH D. SWAIN 

was recal led as a witness on behalf o f  Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporation and, having been previously sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as 

follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

know you are s t i l l  

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Ms. Swain, you 

correct? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Have you prepa 

under oath; 

ed and f i l e d  I n t e r  renor d i rec t  

testimony dated March 17, 2000 consist ing o f  e igh t  pages? 

A Yes, I have. 

Q Have you also f i l e d  rebuttal  testimony dated June 2, 

2000 consist ing o f  nine pages? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you have any changes or corrections t o  e i ther  

piece o f  testimony? 

A I have corrections t o  my testimony, my Intervenor 

d i rec t  testimony. On Page 4, the numbers t h a t  I'm using are 

based upon M r .  Burton's f i r s t  exh ib i t ,  MB-1,  t h a t  i s  no longer 

the v a l i d  exh ib i t .  I have not corrected the numbers for the 

revis ion tha t  he j u s t  supplied, but I have looked a t  i t  enough 

t o  determine tha t  my conclusions would be the same i f  I d i d  

make those corrections. 

Q And wi th  tha t  understanding, i f  I were t o  ask you the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 
5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 
15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 
21 

22 

23 

24 
25 

1050 

same questions today, would your answers be the same? 

A Yes, they would. 

MR. MELSON: I ' d  ask tha t  Ms. Swain's Intervenor 

d i rec t  testimony and rebuttal  testimony be inserted i n t o  the 

record as though read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show the 

Intervenor testimony o f  Ms. Swain entered i n t o  the record as 

though read. 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q And there was three exh ib i ts  attached t o  your 

Intervenor d i rec t ,  DDS-6 through DDS-8; correct? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s  correct. 

Q And DDS-8 i s  one of  those t h a t ' s  been superceded by a 

l a t e r  exhib i t ;  i s  t ha t  r i gh t?  

A Yes, t h a t ' s  r i gh t .  

Q 

A No. 

Any changes t o  DDS-6 or  7? 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman, I asked tha t  DDS-6 and 

7 be marked as composite exh ib i t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show t h a t  marked as composite 

Exhib i t  39. 

(Exhibi t  39 marked for i den t i f i ca t ion .  1 
MR. MELSON: And I ' d  ask t h a t  DDS-8 be marked as 

Exhib i t  40. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show t h a t  marked as Exh ib i t  40. 
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(Exhibi t  40 marked f o r  iden t i f i ca t ion . )  

MR. MELSON: And t h a t ' s  one that  we w i l l  not be 

moving f o r  the admission o f .  

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q You also had three exhibi ts attached t o  your rebuttal  

testimony, DDS-9, 10, and 11; i s  tha t  correct? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s  correct. 

Q 
A Yes, t h a t ' s  r i gh t .  

And I believe i t ' s  10 and 11 that  a re  now superceded? 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman, i f  we could have DDS-10 

and 11 added as par t  o f  composite Exhibi t  40. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 10 and l l ?  

MR. MELSON: Yes, s i r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: So tha t  Exhibi t  40 i s  amended t o  

include DDS-10 and 11. 

MR. MELSON: And then we would ask tha t  DDS-9 be 

marked as Exhibi t  41. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show tha t  marked as Exhib i t  41. 

(Exhibi t  41 marked f o r  i den t i f i ca t i on . )  
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

INTERVENOR DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 

DEBORAH D. SWAIN 

ON BEHALF OF 

NOCATEE UTILITY CORPORATION AND DDI, INC.  

DOCKET NOS. 990696-WS & 992040-WS 

March 17, 2000 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Deborah D. Swain. My business address is 

2025 Southwest 32nd Avenue, Miami, FL 33415. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am Vice President of the consulting firm of Milian, 

Swain & Associates, Inc. 

Have you previously filed direct testimony in support 

of Nocatee Utility Corporation's certificate 

application in these consolidated dockets? 

Yes . 
What is the purpose of your intervenor direct 

testimony? 

This testimony contains my evaluation, on behalf of 

Nocatee Utility Corporation (NUC) and its parent 

company, DDI, Inc. (DDI), of the competing application 

filed by Intercoastal Utilities (Intercoastal) to serve 

territory West of the Intracoastal Waterway that 
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comprises the Nocatee development. In particular, I 

have focused on the financial and rate aspects of that 

application. 

Are you sponsoring any exhibi ts  with t h i s  testimony? 

Yes. I am sponsoring three exhibits, which I refer to 

later in my testimony. 

Have you reviewed Intercoastal's f inanc ia l  statements? 

Yes. Intercoastal did not provide any financial 

statements with its application in this docket. I 

therefore reviewed the Financial Report for the year- 

ended August 31, 1998, prepared by Smoak, Davis & Nixon 

LLP, that was submitted by Intercoastal to St. Johns 

County in support of its earlier attempt to extend its 

service territory. I also reviewed the financial 

section of the annual report that Intercoastal 

submitted to St. Johns County for the year ended 

December 31, 1998. Copies of these documents are  

attached for informational purposes as Exhibits 

(DDS-6) and (DDS-7) . 
What observations do you have about t h e s e  financial 

statements . 
They show that Intercoastal su f fe red  net losses in 1997 

and 1998, and that by December 1998, Intercoastal had 

paid-in capital of approximately $69,000 and a retained 

earning deficit of about $1,656,000, resulting in 
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negative equity of almost $1,587,000. The statements 

also show that Intercoastal had long term debt of over 

$3.6 million. Furthermore, a note to the August 31 

Financial Report indicates that increased debt has been 

secured to fund plant improvements, resulting in a 

sharp increase in the scheduled principal payments on 

that debt from about the $150,000 per year range in 

1999-2002 to about $1.1 million in 2003. 

What conclusions do you draw from t h i s  financial 

information? 

First, Intercoastal has been unable to pay its debt 

service from operating earnings f o r  the years 1997 and 

1998. They have had to increase wastewater rates over 

40% in part to pay f o r  new debt. It is unclear from 

the information provided if this increase will provide 

revenues adequate to pay f o r  the new debt. 

Second, the negative equity and highly leveraged 

position of the utility indicates a high financial risk 

and certainly raises questions regarding the continued 

financial viability of the utility over the long term, 

particularly in light of its plans to finance its 

expansion into the requested territory entirely through 

debt. 

24  Q. Does it appear that  Intercoastal's shareholders intend 

2 5  to make any equity investment to support the funding 
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needed t o  serve the proposed expansion territory? 

No, Mr. Burton's Exhibit (MB-1) projects that the 

utility will finance its investment in new plant 

entirely through additional borrowings, For example, 

page 24 of his exhibit shows $1,877,750 of projected 

borrowings in 2000 and another $12 million of 

borrowings in 2002, with no equity additions 

whatsoever. This is an increase in current debt of 

4008 in the next couple of years. 

Can you te l l  from the financial information provided if 

Intercoastal will be able t o  pay for its increased 

debt? 

It does not l ook  like they can, under any of the 

scenarios presented in Mr. Burton's Exhibit (MB-1). 

Looking at Figure 1, Scenario 1 (page 8), the "Achieved 

Return" indicated on line 22 for the year 2000 is 

$213,000, up to $719,000 in 2005. "Achieved Return" is 

used to mean the level of income earned out of which 

interest is paid. However, interest expense in those 

same years, taken from Figure 14 (pages 24-27), line 3 1  

is $605,000 in 2000, up to $1,229,000 in 2005. In 

fact, according to Mr. Burton's exhibit, the utility is 

unable to pay its interest out of operating income in 

any year he has shown, It appears that this is because 

debt far exceeds rate base throughout the projection 
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period. 

What particular significance do the years that you are 

referring to have? 

The initial rates t h a t  I have calculated for NUC are 

based upon the financial condition in the year the 

utility's Phase 1 reaches 80% capaci ty .  This is 

expected to take p lace  around 2005. T h e  rates that I 

have determined for NUC would enable it to earn income 

adequate to fully pay its debt and equity obligations 

in that year. 

Have you reviewed the rate projections and other 

financial analysis contained in Mr. Burton's Exhibit 

(MB-1) ? 

Yes I have. 

Do you agree with Mr. Burton's conclusion that the 

extension of Intercoastal's territory t o  the West of 

the Intracoastal Waterway could reduce rate pressure 

over the  long term? 

I agree at a theoretical level that if the fixed costs 

of service can be spread over a larger customer base, 

and all o t h e r  things remain equal, one would expect 

rates to decrease. In fact, some preliminary analyses 

that I have performed f o r  NUC show that its rates 

should decrease over time as Nocatee grows and 

additional customers are served. 

- 
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Q. 

A, 

Q .  

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Until I can review Mr. Burton's workpapers and 

assumptions in more detail, however, I cannot agree 

with his specific conclusions about Intercoastal. 

Have you compared Intercoastal 's rates w i t h  those of 

NUC? 

Yes. I have compared Intercoastal's existing rates -- 

which it proposes to apply to customers in the 

expansion territory -- with the initial rates that NUC 

has requested in this docket, I have attached a chart 

which shows this comparison as Exhibit (DDS-8). 

What conclusions do you draw f r o m  this comparison? 

I n  general, Intercoastal's water rates are somewhat 

lower than NUC's proposed rates, while its wastewater 

rates are somewhat higher. The combined water and 

wastewater bill fo r  the consumption level that 

Intercoastal identifies as an average customer (5,333 

gallons per month) are virtually identical, The level 

of rates therefore should not be a major factor in the 

Commission's decision i n  these dockets. 

Have you identified any differences in the assumptions 

that went into the development of these rates? 

Intercoastal's proposed rates simply mirror the rates 

that are currently in e f fec t  under regulation by St. 

Johns County. They do not include any pro forma effect 

of expanding the system to serve West of the 
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Intracoastal Waterway. They also may not include the 

full ratemaking effect of water and wastewater plant 

expansions which are in progress or have been recently 

completed. 

NUC's proposed rates are based on projected costs 

when the first phase of the water and wastewater 

systems reach 80% of capacity. They thus include 

specific costs to serve the territory at issue. 

In performing his financial analysis of future rate 

pressure, what assumptions did Mr. Burton make about 

utility investment in lines? 

Based on the Conceptual Master Plan prepared by Post 

Buckley, Mr. Burton apparently assumed that 

Intercoastal would invest only in the backbone mains 

running along County Road 210, and that all other 

transmission, distribution and collection mains would 

be contributed by the respective developers. As Mr. 

Doug Miller testifies, the backbone wastewater lines 

shown in Phase 1 do not appear to be adequately sized 

to serve the first phase of the Nocatee development. 

The combination of these two factors results in 

Intercoastal estimating an unreasonably low amount of 

utility investment in lines. This results in an 

excessive level of CIAC, and therefore an artificially 

low projection of future rates, 
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It also appears that these developer contributed 

lines may have been excluded from Mr. Burton's 

projection of future net CIAC as a percentage.of future 

plant. If so, his conclusion that Intercoastal's CIAC 

will remain within Commission guidelines is suspect, 

and cannot be verified. 

Q. Does that conclude your intervenor direct testimony? 

A. Yes it does. 

2 5  
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A. 

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF 

DEBORAH D. SWAIN 

ON BEHALF OF 

NOCATEE UTILITY CORPORATION AND DDI, INC. 

DOCKET NOS. 990696-WS & 992040-WS 

June 2, 2000 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Deborah D. Swain. My business address is 

2025 Southwest 32nd Avenue, Miami, FL 33415. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am Vice President of the consulting firm of Milian, 

Swain ti Associates, Inc. 

Have you previously filed direct and intervenor 

testimony in support of Nocatee Utility Corporation's 

(NUC's) certificate application in these consolidated 

dockets? 

Yes. 

What i s  the purpose of your rebuttal testimony? 

My rebuttal testimony responds to the prefiled 

testimony of Michael E. Burton and Caroline Silvers. 

MICHAEL E. BURTON 

Q. Have you reviewed the testimony of Mr. Burton and h i s  

Exhibit MB-2 , Financial Analysis - Revised? 
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analysis sponsored by M r .  Burton? 

A. My first observation regards the study procedure. On 

page 2 of Exhibit MB-2 I Mr. Burton indicates that 

he has developed a predictive model designed to project 

financial performance of any water and sewer utility 

regulated by the Florida Public Service Commission. At 

this point I have n o t  been able to f u l l y  analyze his 

model. Intercoastal has claimed that the model is 

confidential and has refused to provide an electronic 

copy of the model in response to NUC’s discovery 

requests, even under a confidentiality agreement. My 

review of Exhibit MB-2 nevertheless leads me to 

question whether his model accurately reflects the 

ratemaking principles applied by the Commission. 

Q. In Exhibit MB-2, Mr. Burton analyzes the impact upon 

customer rates of implementing Intercoastal‘s plans for 

service versus the impact of NUC’s proposed rates. 

Assuming far purposes of t h i s  answer t h a t  Mr. Burton’s 

model produces valid results, would his analysis be of 

any assistance to t h i s  Commission? 

A. No. And that is my second observation. Mr. Burton’s 

analysis appears to be flawed because, rather than 

developing rates that recover Intercoastal’s cost to 
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provide service, he develops rates that require 

Intercoastal's owners to subsidize the utility's cost 

of service. 

Would you please explain? 

M r .  Burton analyzes two scenarios under which 

Intercoastal would provide water and wastewater service 

to Nocatee. In Scenario 1 service is proposed to be 

provided to Nocatee on what Mr. Burton c a l l  a "stand 

alone" basis. That is, Intercoastal would build a 

separate system west of the Intracoastal Waterway to 

serve Nocatee. The system would not be interconnected 

with the system east of the waterway, but the cos ts  to 

serve would be combined and the rates would be the same 

f o r  both service areas. In Scenario 2, Intercoastal 

would "stand in NUC's  shoes" and serve Nocatee with 

services purchased from JEA. The costs to serve 

Nocatee would then be combined with those to serve east 

of the waterway and the rates would be the same for 

both areas. 

The proforma income projections f o r  Scenario 1 are 

shown at pages 19 and 20 of Mr. Burton's Exhibit MB-2 

. The proforma income projections f o r  Scenario 2 

are shown a t  pages 47 and 49 of Mr. Burton's Exhibit 

MB-2 . A review of those pages shows that the 

revenues projected to be collected from customers are  
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inadequate to recover the full revenue requirement or 

c o s t  to provide service to Intercoastal's customers. 

These inadequate revenues are the basis of Mr. Burton's 

rate comparison through which he implies that it would 

be advantageous to the customer f o r  Intercoastal to 

provide service. 

Have you determined just how much Mr, Burton has 

understated Intercoastal's revenue requirements? 

Yes. I have prepared Exhibit ( D D S - 9 ) ,  which 

summarizes Intercoastal's projected revenue 

requirements, based on Mr. Burton's assumptions. This 

exhibit shows that by 2005, Intercoastal's cumulative 

revenue deficiencies would be over $1,900,000 under 

Scenario 1 and over $600,000 under Scenario 2, 

Is it advantageous to the customer, if Intercoastal is 

willing to subsidize rates? 

No, As I indicated in my Intervenor direct testimony, 

at year end 1998, Intercoastal had already accumulated 

a deficit of $1.6 million. Mr. Burton's proposals 

would result in additional cumulative income deficits 

of between $590,000 and $1.8 million by 2005, The fact 

that Intercoastal's revenues are insufficient to pay 

debt expenses on its used and useful plant raises 

concerns about i t s  ability to finance the investment 

that would be necessary to provide dependable service 
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to Nocatee's customers. 

Should the Commission base its decision on which 

utility should serve Nocatee based on Mr. Burton's 

implication that Intercoastal's rates would be less 

than NUC's? 

No. The Commission should not base its certificate 

decision on rate projections that involve a subsidized 

rate for Intercoastal that does not f u l l y  recover its 

investment in used and useful plant. The Commission 

should not put customers at risk by granting a 

certificate based on \\loss leader" subsidized rates, 

since the customers would have no protection against a 

major rate increase once a certificate is granted. 

Do you have any other observations regarding Mr. 

Burton' s testimony? 

Yes. The plan analyzed by Mr. Burton in Scenario 1, 

the "stand alone" plan, is not an acceptable plan f o r  

serving Nocatee. A s  testified by Mr. Douglas Miller, 

the plan of service analyzed by Mr. Burton is 

inconsistent with the Nocatee's Application for 

Development Approval as a Development of Regional 

Impact. Therefore,  any conclusions reached by Mr. 

Burton regarding Scenario 1 are  based on an infeasible 

plan and provide no useful information to the 

Commission. 
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What about Scenario 2, the "stand in NUC's shoes" plan? 

This plan also appears to be flawed because 

Intercoastal has presented no evidence that JEA would 

commit to such a wholesale arrangement with it, Mr. 

Burton's analysis of Scenario 2 is therefore a "what 

if" exercise with no factual basis. 

M r .  Burton also analyzes the impact of Intercoastal's 

plan to provide reclaimed water. Do you have any 

observations regarding that analysis? 

Yes. As Mr. Douglas Miller testifies, Intercoastal's 

stand alone reclaimed water plan, which Mr. Burton 

analyzes under Scenario 3 in Exhibit MB-2 , is an 

unacceptable plan because Intercoastal has insufficient 

reclaimed effluent to meet Nocatee's irrigation needs 

and proposes to use ground water to supplement the 

irrigation supply.  Further, Intercoastal has not filed 

proposed tariffs for its reclaimed water service nor 

asked t h e  Commission to set a rate for such service in 

this docket. The financial conclusions reached by Mr, 

Burton in analyzing this plan are therefore speculative 

at best. 

22 

2 3  CAROLINE SILVERS 

2 4  Q. At page 10 of her direct testimony, Ms. Silvers 

25 expresses concern w i t h  the  level of rates f o r  reclaimed 
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w a t e r .  Can you address t h a t  concern? 

Yes, NUC has proposed a base facility and gallonage 

charge rate structure for reclaimed water. The initial 

proposed gallonage charge was $1.41 per 1,000 gallons 

and the monthly base facility charge varied from $3.74 

f o r  a 5 / 8 "  x 3/4" meter to $229.20 for an 8 "  meter. 

Ms. Silvers is concerned that the $1,41/MG gallonage 

charge may discourage large users  such as g o l f  courses 

from purchasing reclaimed water, If these potential 

users can show that the purchase of reclaimed water is 

not economically feasible, they may be able  to support 

an application f o r  a consumptive use permit and use 

groundwater for irrigation, 

Does NUC share her concern? 

Yes, it does. It will be of no benefit to anyone if 

reuse of reclaimed water is not economically feasible. 

Have you investigated alternatives to NUC's original 

rate proposal that would make the sale of reclaimed 

w a t e r  more feasible, especially to large consumers? 

Yes, In response to the concerns about the reuse rate, 

I have developed an alternative rate proposal which i s  

designed to reduce the charge to l a rge  users while 

keeping the average monthly residential bill at an 

affordable level. This alternative involves three 

basic changes from the original rate proposal. 
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Can you please describe these basic changes? 

Yes. First, the new proposal creates better balance 

between the base facility charge and the gallonage 

charge in the rate structure. In researching other 

rate structures I have found that other utilities often 

charge a higher base charge and lower gallonage charge. 

Some even charge a f l a t  monthly charge to residential 

customers, but a t  a much higher level than NUC’s 

originally proposed base facility charge. I have 

reviewed NUC’s costs and believe there is cost 

justification to realign the base and gallonage charges 

in a way that will be fair to all levels of consumers 

and still recover NUC’s cost of service. 

Second, NUC now proposes to require the developer 

of Nocatee to contribute approximately 80% of the cost 

of the off-site reuse transmission main, or roughly 

$1.2 million. This means that the amount of 

contributions-in-aid-of-construction f o r  reuse plant 

will meet the Commission’s guideline f o r  a minimum CIAC 

amount equal to 100% of the cost of transmission and 

distribution facilities. Because so much of the gross 

reuse plant is represented by transmission and 

distribution facilities, the overall net CIAC for the 

reuse system will be approximately 94% of net plant. 

Third, NUC proposes to calculate the reuse rates 
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based on costs and usage assumptions f o r  the last year 

of Phase I ( 2 0 0 6 ) ,  rather than f o r  the year (2005) when 

the Phase I system reaches 80% of capacity. 

Have you prepared an exhibit to show the calculation of 

the new reuse rate? 

A. Yes. I have prepared Exhibit (DDS-10) f o r  that 

purpose.  The exhibit shows the revised rate proposal 

and the calculation of the revenues generated by those 

rates. I have also prepared Exhibit (DDS-11) which 

includes the schedules supporting the calculation. You 

can see from this exhibit that a typical residential 

bill f o r  irrigation will be approximately $15.00 per 

month or less while the usage rate, which has the most 

impact on large users, will drop from $1.41/MG to 

$0.35/MG. 

Q. Does that conclude your rebuttal testimony? 

A. Yes it does. 

2 5  
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BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Ms. Swain, would you b r i e f l y  summarize your 

Intervenor d i rec t  and your rebuttal  testimony? 

A Yes. Thank you. Good afternoon again, 

Commissioners. My Intervenor and rebuttal testimonies comment 

on the Intercoastal plan o f  service and respond t o  

In tercoasta l 's  cr i t ic isms o f  Nocatee's plan o f  service. It 

a1 so describes tha t  Intercoastal I s f inanci a1 p ic tu re  r a i  ses 

concern for us, and as i t  should fo r  you, about i t s  a b i l i t y  t o  

provide continuous service t o  Nocatee. It demonstrates t h a t  i t  

has substantial negative net worth t h a t ' s  h igh ly  leveraged. 

I t s  debt i s  greater than r a t e  base, meaning tha t  i t  i s  not ever 

e n t i t l e d  t o  earn a re turn adequate t o  even cover i t ' s  i n te res t  

expense; tha t  i t  plans t o  finance new p lant  w i th  100 percent 

debt; therefore, continuing i t s  high f inancial  r i s k .  The plan 

requires substantial subsidies from the stockholders, 

stockholders would have never made investments i n  the u t i l i t y  

i n  the past. And i t  raises doubt about i t s  a b i l i t y  t o  provide 

service, therefore, on a 1 ong- term basi s . 
Furthermore, Intercoastal p l  aces re1 i ance on i t s  

expected economies o f  scale, and tha t  causes us concern over 

Intercoastal ls a b i l i t y  t o  keep up wi th  the s ign i f i can t  growth. 

We have found many errors i n  the f inancial  model which many 

apparently have been corrected, but we have not been able t o  

v e r i f y  t ha t  a l l  o f  them have been corrected without f u l l  access 
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to  the spreadsheet without the password protection. The r a t e s  

that are described i n  tha t  model are less than f u l l y  

compensatory. Whereas, Nocatee i s requesting 100 percent o f  

dhat we're e n t i t l e d  to,  which i s  the Commission long-standing 

pol icy  requi r ing tha t  rates be set f o r  a new u t i l i t y  a t  

30 percent o f  b u i l d  out, thereby preventing a subsidy and 

thereby preventing loss leader type rates. That puts us i n  a 

pos i t ion  o f  being very suspect o f  In tercoasta l 's  motives. 

Furthermore, the reuse rates projected by Mr. Burton are not 

accompanied by a request t o  establ ish rates. That concludes my 

summary . 
MR. MELSON: And Ms. Swain i s  tendered f o r  cross. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : M r  . Menton. 

MR. MENTON: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Korn. 
MR. KORN: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : M r  . Deterdi ng . 
CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DETERDING: 

Q Ms. Swain, you know tha t  there are earning d e f i c i t s  

for Intercoastal i n  the two years you analyzed, '97 and '98; 

correct? 

A Yes, t ha t  I s correct .  

Q Did you look a t  '96 or any e a r l i e r  years? 

A I d i d  not look a t  each o f  the ind iv idual  years. What 
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I looked at was that the balance to date demonstrated that over 
its - -  since its inception it had a net loss, and that in the 
two years it looked at, it had net losses in those years as 
well. I did not look at individual prior years. 

Q Did you look at '99 or 2000? 

A 1 don't recall that I looked at '99 or 2000. I may 
have seen '99. I don't recall. 

Q Yet you're aware that the utility was able to obtain 
additional debt financing at the end o f  1998 and again in 2000; 
correct? 

A 

Q Okay. Are you aware that that debt financing was 
I understand that to be the case, yes. 

obtained at rates of less than 7.5 percent? 
A 

Q Okay. Are you aware that Intercoastal had a 
I understand that to be the case as well 

substanti a1 wastewater rate increase in 1999? 
A Yes, I understand there was a limited proceed 

caused a tremendous increase in the rates. 
Q How long have you worked in the area o f  water 

sewer utilities in Florida? 
A Twenty- three years. 
Q Do you know how long Intercoastal has been i n  

operation under its current ownership? 
A 

Q 
I believe I heard that i t  was the early '80s. 

Do you know how long JAX Utilities Management 
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p r i  nc i  pal s o f  Intercoastal have been i n  the u t i  1 i t y  business? 

A No, I don't.  

Q 

A 

How long have you known M r .  James? 

I ' v e  known Mr. James fo r  as long as I ' v e  been i n  the 

water and sewer industry. 

Q And he's been i n  i t  longer than you have by a long 

shot; correct? 

A 

Q 

I understand tha t  he's been a t  i t  longer than 1 have. 

Do you know anyone i n  t h i s  State cur ren t ly  operating 

or constructing or  managing water u t i l i t i e s  whose been i n  the 

water u t i  1 i t y  business 1 onger than Mr James? 

A I don't  know whether I do or  not. I'm not aware o f  

the - -  

Q Can you th ink  of anyone? 

A No, I don' t  t h ink  o f  anybody. 

Q Have you seen any years i n  which Intercoastal has 

been unable t o  meet i t s  debt service? 

A I n  tha t  i f  you mean tha t  they have not defaulted 

on - -  whether they have defaulted on loans o r  not, I have not 

seen whether they have ever defaulted on loans. I know, 

however, tha t  they have not earned enough i n  operating 

t o  cover t h e i r  i n te res t  expense. 

Q Okay. I understand tha t .  Have you seen a t 

they have been unable t o  meet t h e i r  debt service? 

A I have not seen whether tha t  has happened or 

earnings 

me when 

not . 
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Q 

e t o  meet t h e i r  debt service? 

A 

they have. 

Q 

You don' t  know o f  any years i n  which they have been 

That's correct, nor have I seen tha t  they - -  perhaps 

Do you have anything t o  indicate t o  you tha t  they 

have been unable t o  meet t h e i r  debt service? 

A No, I have never seen anything l i k e  that .  

Q You're project ing growth f o r  the Nocatee development 

i n  your analysis o f  an average o f  471 un i t s  - - ERCs per year; 

i s  t ha t  correct? 

A That sounds r i g h t ,  yes. 

Q Do you know i f  any o f  the systems owned by or 

operated by the pr inc ipa ls  o f  Intercoastal have had s im i  1 a r  

growth rates i n  the past? 

A No, I don' t  know. 

Q So you don ' t  know i f  they have ever had t o  deal w i th  

t h i s  level  o f  growth? 

A 

Q Okay. 
A Other than M r .  Burton's schedule, I haven't seen any 

No, I have not seen whether they have or  not. 

or  i t s  pr inc ipa ls .  

s so le ly  w i th  

other f inancial  analysis o f  Intercoasta 

Q And M r .  Burton's schedule dea 

Intercoastal,  does i t  not? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s  r i g h t .  

Q Would you agree tha t  the main d i  f ference between 
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D D I ' s  commitment t o  fund NUC and the pr inc ipa ls  o f  

Intercoastal I s commitment t o  fund Intercoastal i s  p r imar i l y  a 

leve l  o f  comfort NUC has wi th  DDI  because they are a re la ted 

party? 

A I don' t  th ink  tha t  t h a t ' s  the only difference. I 

th ink  tha t  - -  
Q Well, l e t  me in te r rup t  you there. I didn' t  ask you 

I s  i t  the primary dif ference? i f  i t  was the only dif ference. 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman, I th ink  the witness i s  

e n t i t l e d  t o  answer the question tha t  explains - -  

MR. DETERDING: I f  she answers the question, I agree, 

and the question was, i s  t ha t  the primary dif ference. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Restate your question, and then 

w e ' l l  get the answer. 

BY MR. DETERDING: 

Q Would you agree tha t  the main dif ference between 

DDI's committment t o  fund NUC and the pr inc ipa ls  o f  

Intercoastal ' s  wi l l ingness t o  fund Intercoastal i s  p r imar i l y  

the leve l  o f  comfort t ha t  NUC has w i th  DDI  because they are 

re1 ated part ies? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes or no would be great, and then 

your expl anati on . 
A I th ink  tha t  i t  i s  perhaps the main reason, but  i t  i s  

not the only s ign i f i can t  reason. There are other reasons. One 

i s  - -  and I'll elaborate on t ha t  - -  the fac t  t ha t  i t ' s  a 
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related par ty  e n t i t l e s  D D I  t o  a more in-depth know 

f inancial  capab i l i t y  o f  i t s  subsidiary than i t  wou 

edge o f  the 

d o f  

Intercoastal.  That relat ionship by d e f i n i t i o n  would cause tha t  

t o  happen. But furthermore, DDI  i s  on the br ink  o f  beginning 

what I understand i s  a mu1 ti - b i  11 i on  dol 1 a r  development and 

would ce r ta in l y  prefer t o  place i t s  fa te  i n  the hands o f  the 

u t i l i t y  i n  which i t  has confidence. Now, whether tha t  be 

because i t ' s  a related par ty  o r  because i t  has in-depth 

knowledge o f  tha t  re lated par ty  i s  cer ta in ly  - -  one or  the 

other i s  a poss ib i l i t y ;  I th ink  the l a t t e r .  

Q Do you reca l l  when I took your deposition on 

July 26th, 2000? 

A Yes. 

Q I re fe r  you to Page 68, Line 19. 

Question: Do you see any dif ference between the 

promise o f  DDI's parent developer company t o  make up whatever 

sho r t fa l l s  may be experienced f o r  Nocatee and the promise o f  

the shareholders o f  I C U  t o  make up any revenue s h o r t f a l l s  they 

may experience during t h i s  same period? 

Answer: Yes, I do. It's pr imar i l y  a leve l  o f  

comfort because o f  the relat ionship,  and the developer who's 

making the commitment i s  the one tha t  i s  - -  the one tha t  most 

i s  dependent upon tha t  commitment being met. They need t o  have 

a u t i l i t y  - -  they need t o  have the u t i l i t y  f a c i l i t i e s  i n s t a l l e d  

as planned i n  order t o  do t h e i r  development t o  complete t h e i r  
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development on a t imely basis. 

Do you stand by tha t  testimony? 

A Yes, absolutely. And I believe when you read tha t ,  

t ha t  what I said was, the u t i l i t y  wi th  which i t  has a 

relat ionship.  And i t  does have a re lat ionship ce r ta in l y  again 

by de f i n i t i on .  It may be because i t ' s  a re la ted party, but it 

does have a relat ionship w i th  tha t  u t i l i t y  and, therefore, has 

a greater leve l  o f  comfort. 

Q I s n ' t  i t  t rue  tha t  D D I  - -  neither DDI  o r  NUC have 

ever been i n  the u t i l i t y  business before? 

A That's correct. 

Q You made a statement, I bel ieve, i n  your opening 

comments tha t  I don' t  see i n  your testimony, but i t  - - I wanted 

t o  ask you about. You said Intercoastal Is investors have never 

made investments i n  the u t i l i t y  i n  the past. 

tha t  t h i s  u t i l i t y  company was s tar ted by those investors by an 

i n i  ti a1 investment? 

Isn't i t  t rue  

A Yes. And I do s ta te  i n  my testimony on Page 2, Line 

24 tha t  t ha t  i n i t i a l  investment was $69,000. 

Q Okay. Do you know whether or not t h i s  u t i l i t y  has 

ever been funded by those shareholders f o r  p r i o r  years' losses, 

sho r t fa l l  s? 

A To my knowledge, there 's  never be any addit ional 

investment tha t  removes the negative equity other than t h a t  

i n i t i a l  $69,000. And - -  
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, i s n ' t  i t  t rue  - -  I'm sorry, I apologize. 

any investment tha t  the stockholders may have 

nade has been more than made up f o r  by the negative equity, and 

tha t ' s  a very important d is t inc t ion ,  tha t  the negative equi ty  

i s  demonstration tha t  there has not been an investment by the 

stockholders. 

Q So you bel ieve t h a t  tha t  negative equi ty  demonstrates 

tha t  there has never be any other investment by the 

shareholders t o  cover sho r t fa l l  s? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s  correct. And l e t  me explain fur ther .  

When there i s  negative equi ty,  as i s  the case w i th  

Intercoastal,  i f  the  negative equi ty i n  any one year i s  

completely o f fse t  by an investment by the stockholders, and 

there i s  evidence o f  an investment by the stockholders, but 

p a r t i a l  payments o f  cash tha t  don ' t  anywhere near compensate 

f o r  the negative equi ty,  i n  my mind, are not  investments by the 

stockholders. Those are temporary cash p l  acements tha t  are 

o f fse t  by negative equi ty  thereafter.  

Q Well, do you know whether these shareholders have 

ever loaned money t o  Intercoastal U t i l i t i e s ?  

A No, I don ' t  know tha t .  I don' t  know. 

Q So you are saying only equi ty investments, not  any 

investments by the shareholders? 

A 

investment . 
An investment i n  my d e f i n i t i o n  i s  an equi ty  
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Q Do you know whether they have ever infused capi ta l  

i n t o  t h i s  u t i l i t y  i n  the form o f  debt? 

A No, and I don' t  have any testimony regarding tha t .  

Q You expressed again i n  your summary your concern t h a t  

the - - tha t  Intercoastal ' s  rates and proposals and I guess, 

rea l l y ,  M r .  Burton's project ions show a subsidy o f  Intercoastal 

by i t s  shareholders, a required subsidy. 

A Yes, t h a t ' s  correct. Even i n  h i s  revised exh ib i t  f o r  

the f i r s t  number o f  years o f  h i s  pro ject ion period, there 

continues t o  be a subsidy. 

Q I s n ' t  i t  t rue  tha t  the rates o f  NUC are established 

on rates tha t  w i l l  provide a recovery o f  expenses and a f a i r  

re turn fo r  the f i r s t  three years o f  i t s  operation? 

A I'm sorry, I misunderstood your question. Could you 

repeat - - 
Q I s n ' t  i t  t rue  tha t  your proposed rates i n  t h i s  case 

are those tha t  w i l l  generate a f a i r  re tu rn  and recovery o f  

expenses fo r  NUC only a f t e r  four years o f  operation? 

A Yes. And tha t  i s  a l l  t ha t  I ' m  authorized to .  I am 
asking for 100 percent t o  which I am authorized, and t h a t ' s  

100 percent recovery o f  costs and a f a i r  r a t e  o f  re turn i n  the 

year tha t  they reach 80 percent. 

But they w i l l  not be generating t h a t  f a i r  r a te  o f  

re turn and recovery o f  expenses i n  the p r i o r  years, t o  your 

know1 edge? 

Q 
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A As  I said the other day when you asked me t h a t  

question, I don' t  expect tha t  they w i l l  earn a f a i r  re tu rn  

u n t i l  year four tha t  - -  by de f i n i t i on ,  and I expect t ha t  some 

o r  a l l  from my analysis o f  the operating expenses w i l l  be fully 

paid perhaps i n  the t h i r d  year. 

Q But you don ' t  know whether they w i l l  be i n  the f i r s t ,  

second, o r  t h i r d  year? 

A Well, I don' t  know about the f i r s t  o r  second, but  I 

know tha t  i n  the t h i r d  year tha t  they w i l l  be. 

Q And i f  they are not i n  the f i r s t  or  second year, then 

tha t  represents a subsidy o f  NUC by i t s  shareholders, doesn't 

it? 

A Certainly the developer i n  t h i s  case and f o r  any new 

u t i l i t y  i s  put i n  a pos i t ion  by the Commission tha t  i t  must 

subsidize any sho r t fa l l s  u n t i l  the year tha t  i t  reaches 

80 percent. And so, yes, there w i l l  be a subsidy most l i k e l y  

i n  the f i r s t  year and possibly the second year, and t h a t  

requirement . 
MR. DETERDING: That's a l l  I have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: S t a f f .  

MS. CIBULA: S t a f f  doesn't have any questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Commissioners. Redirect. 

RED1 RECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MELSON: 

i s  by 

Q Just one question, Ms. Swain. M r .  Deterding asked 
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you - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I ' m  sorry, I ' m  s i t t i n g  here and I 

forgot I had a question. Ms. Swain, are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  the 

testimony o f  Ms. S i l v e r s  i n  her analysis of the reuse rates? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. And I d i d  i n  my rebut ta l  

testimony attach an exh ib i t  t h a t ' s  a rev is ion t o  the reuse 

rates. I n  response t o  her concerns, I absolutely agree. And 

so we've revised the rates t o  be - -  bas ica l l y  what we d i d  i s  

s h i f t  some o f  the cost t o  the f l a t  fee, base fee t h a t  the 

customer pays and out o f  the gallonage amount, and t h a t ' s  what 

her concern was. And now i t ' s  low enough t h a t  i t ' s  affordable 

t o  the customers. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very wel l .  And mainly f o r  the 

large users was her concern, so t h a t  would continue t o  be the 

case. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: It would be a t t r a c t i v e  t o  the large 

users. 
THE WITNESS: That's r i g h t .  The s ing le greatest 

user, o f  course, i s  the g o l f  course. And t h i s  w i l l  be much 

more benef ic ia l  t o  them and yet  s t i l l  r e s u l t  i n  an average 

rate, monthly r a t e  t o  the res ident ia l  customers t h a t ' s  

comparable w i th  other areas tha t  I looked a t .  

MR. DETERDING: Excuse me. I f  you don ' t  mind, I 

forgot two questions. Very quickly. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very b r i e f l y .  

MR. DETERDING: It won't be d i f f i c u l t .  

CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. DETERDING: 

Q I s n ' t  i t  t rue  t h a t  the proposed service a v a i l a b i l i t y  

charges o f  NUC w i l l  include NUC's charge and a charge for JEA's 

service avai 1 abi 1 i t y  charge? 

A Yes. Nocatee w i l l  c o l l e c t  both fees and remit the 

JEA por t ion  t o  them. 

Q And i s n ' t  it t rue  t h a t  the service a v a i l a b i l l t y  

charges combined fo r  those two tha t  w i l l  be col lected from each 

customer w i l l  be higher than those o f  Intercoastal? 

A That's possible. I haven't looked a t  that .  

MR. DETERDING: That 's a l l  I have. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: The combination o f  those 

charges, are they higher than what JEA would charge service 

avai 1 abi 1 i t y  charges fo r  i t s  own customers? 

THE WITNESS: I 'm not cer ta in  because f o r  t h e i r  own 

customers they w i l l  a1 so charge a connection fee, and I don ' t  

know i f  there 's  other fees. And a l l  we're co l l ec t i ng  i s  the 

capacity fee piece, so I haven't looked t o  see combined i f  i t ' s  

greater than the t o t a l  JEA. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: You guys got me on another question 

I had forgotten. There was some c r i t i q u e  by M r .  Burton, and i t  

goes t o  your analysis tha t  the rates would probably - -  there 
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w i l l  be some concern tha t  the rates would never produce a 

savings because the usage would be above what was projected. 

Are you f a m i l i a r  w i th  tha t  testimony? 

THE WITNESS: Something a1 ong those 1 ines. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. And the question I have i s ,  

given tha t  there's been recommendation fo r  conservation rates 

here and given the prominent use o f  reuse and other measures, 

do you s t i l l  have the concern tha t  usage would go t o  the leve ls  

tha t  you are pro ject ing i n  your - -  a t  one po in t  I th ink  you're 

suggesting maybe over 25,000 gallons per month. 

THE WITNESS: Right. What we're an t ic ipa t ing  i s  the 

average resident ia l  customer w i l l  use 10,000 gallons, and our 

rates are comparable o r  less than Intercoastal i n  every 

category up t o  25,000. For the highest users, i t  tends t o  

f l i p f l o p .  And what my statement was, was tha t  i t ' s  very 

unl i kely  tha t  a customer would use over 25,000 . We' r e  

expecting they are going t o  use 10,000. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Very wel l .  M r .  Melson. 

CONTI NUED RED I RECT EXAM I NAT I ON 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q M r .  Deterding asked i f  you were aware t h a t  

Intercoastal had successfully obtained new borrowings I t h ink  

he said i n  1998 and 2000. Do you reca l l  t ha t  question? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you recal 
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borrowings i s  compared t o  the borrowings tha t  are projected t o  

implement Intercoastal 's  plan o f  service f o r  the Nocatee 

devel opment? 

A Yes. The number I reca l l  from Mr. Burton's testimony 

t h i s  morning was i n  the neighborhood o f  $3 m i l l i o n .  And what 

we're looking a t  as the requirements fo r  addit ional borrowings 

by Intercoastal i s  a t  least  $20 m i l l i o n ,  I believe, j u s t  for 
water and sewer and tha t  doesn't include the reuse port ion. 

MR. MELSON: Thank you. That 's a l l  I had. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Exhibits. 

MR. MELSON: Th i r ty -n ine  and 41. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show Exhibi ts 39 

and 41 are admitted. 

(Exhibits 39 and 41 admitted i n t o  the record.) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you, Ms. Swain. 

(Witness excused. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And I th ink  we're - -  Mr. M i l l e r .  

MR. WHARTON: We would c a l l  M r .  Jim M i l l e r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . 
JIM MILLER 

was recal led as a witness on behalf o f  Intercoastal U' 

Inc. ,  and, having been previously sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. WHARTON : 

i 1 i t i e s ,  

follows: 

Q Mr. M i l l e r ,  do you reca l l  t h a t  you are s t i l l  sworn? 
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A Yes, I do. 

Q S i r ,  d id  you cause t o  be prepared Intervenor d i rec t  

testimony consisting o f  e ight  pages, rebuttal  testimony 

consist ing o f  eight pages , and supplemental Intervenor 

testimony consisting o f  s i x  pages i n  t h i s  - -  

A Yes, I did.  

Q Okay. And i f  we ask you those same questions here 

today, would your answers be the same? 

A I believe so, yes. 

Q Do you have any corrections t o  make t o  tha t  testimony 

a t  t ha t  time? 

A The only correct ion - -  and i t ' s  j u s t  an update - -  I 

th ink  i n  one o f  these I mentioned tha t  the Mandarin wastewater 

p lant  had an ex is t ing  - -  what I thought was an ex is t ing  flow o f  

5 MGD. I understand t h a t ' s  closer t o  6 MGD now. And t h a t ' s  

j u s t  what I ' m  hearing t a l k i n g  t o  p lant  personnel. 

Q And, s i r ,  you also had an Exhib i t  JM-2 tha t  was 

attached t o  one o f  those testimonies, but t h a t ' s  already been 

put i n t o  evidence i n  t h i s  case; correct? 

A That 's correct. 

MR. WHARTON: Okay. We would request t h a t  

M r .  M i l  l e r  ' s Intervenor d i r e c t  testimony, rebut ta l  testimony, 

and supplemental Intervenor testimony be entered i n t o  the  

record as though read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show those 
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testimonies o f  Mr. Jim Miller entered i n to  the record as though 

read. 
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INTERVENOR TESTIMONY OF JIM MILLER 

Are you the same Jim Miller who prefiled on behalf of Intercoastal Utilities? 

Yes 

Mr. Miller, please state your full name and employment address. 

My name is James H. Miller, Jr. and I am employed by PBS&J at 7785 

Baymeadows Way, Suite 202, Jacksonville, Florida 32256. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am employed by PBS&J. I am a vice president and senior program manager 

for the Jacksonville water and wastewater program. 

Please list your professional and educational experience post-high school. 

I a m  a registered professional engineer in Florida since 1979 (#24398), North 

Carolina since 1985 (#I  2802), and Alabama since 1985 (# I  5020). I hold and 

active Florida Engineering Society Certificate of Continuing Professional 

Development and am current with my required continuing education for both 

North Carolina and Alabama. I attended Georgia Institute of Technology, 

Atlanta, Ga., majoring in Civil engineering ( 1  963-1 967). 1 am an active member 

of the Florida Engineering Society, National Society of Professional Engineers, 

American Water Works Association, Water Environment Federation, Society of 

American Military Engineers, and Florida Water Resources Association. I have 

worked continuously in Jacksonville, Florida area since 1968. I was employed 

a t  RS&H as a project engineedcomputer modeler from 1968-1972. In that 

capacity, I served as a project engineer for the 1968 City of Jacksonville Water 

Study, and various other water system studies for the City of Taltahassee, U.S. 

Navy, and City of North Miami Beach. I participated on the design team for the 

City of Jacksonville Water Improvement Program in 1969-1 972, which included 
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design of numerous water transmission main extensions and water treatment 

plants. From 1972-1979, I served as the water and wastewater project 

manager for Fred Wilson & Associates. My primary clients included the Town 

of Orange Park, University of Florida, and U.S. Navy. During my  tenure at Fred 

Wilson and Associates, I was project engineedmanager for both water and 

waterwater studies, plant expansions, and transmission, distribution, and 

collection mains. In 1979 I joined PBS&J as a project manager in their 

Jacksonville office and was responsible for several water and wastewater 

projects for the City of Panama City Beach, completion of the Cedar Hills 

Pumping Station for the City of Jacksonville, 201 Facilities Plan for the City of 

Panama City Beach, and water and sewer systems for Honeymoon Island State 

Park. 

I was employed by Flood Engineers, as an associate vice president and project 

manager, from 1981 t o  1983 and continued t o  serve a project manager for the 

City of Panama City Beach, as well as clients such as the City of St. Augustine 

and U.S. Navy. Projects included water and wastewater studies, treatment 

system design, and transmission/distribution system design. In 1 983, I joined 

the firm of Connelly & Wicker, Inc. as one of the three principals and executive 

vice president in charge of company wide production. During my tenure at 

Connelly & Wicker, I served as project manager for all General Development 

Utility projects including plant design, low pressure sewer system design and 

rehabilitation, studies, and transmission/distribution systems. In 1 990, I sold 

out my interest in Connelly & Wicker and rejoined PBS&J as a vice president 

and senior program manager t o  reopen the Jacksonville office. During my 

tenure at PBS&J, I have managed water and wastewater projects for the City 
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of Jacksonville and later JEA, City of Jacksonville Beach, City of Neptune 

Beach, City of Jasper, as welt as numerous other private clients. 

Have you reviewed the prefiled testimony and other materials filed by NUC and 

DDI on February 1 1 ,  2000? 

Yes, I have reviewed the prefiled testimony of Douglas C. Miller, on behalf of 

Nocatee Utility Corporation; Deborah D. Swain, on behalf of Nocatee Utility 

Corporation; H. Jay Skelton, on behalf of Nocatee Utility Corporation; and 

Nocatee Utility Corporation’s Supplement and Amendment to  Certificate 

Application. Additionally, I have reviewed the deposition of Douglas C. Miller, 

P.E. taken March 1, 2000. 

Do the latest filings by NUC and DDI on February 11, 2000 

in the Nocatee Development? 

The February 11, 2000 filing by NUC and DDI, indicated 

ndicate a change 

a change to  the 

previous data which was provided to Intercoastal Utilities. The new data refines 

the equivalent residentiat connections (ERC’s) and flow projections for the 

water, wastewater, and reclaimed water systems. The documents, firmly 

identify JEA as the wholesale provider for NUC, and thus all onsite utility plants 

have been eliminated. 

Is such a change in a development of that  scale, at this stage of the project 

unusual in your experience? 

While minor changes to  a development of this size relating to number and types 

of units can be expected as an ongoing process, it is unusual to  make a change 

from the apparent intended use of on-site treatment facilities to  a wholesale 

provider at  this late date. This is particularly unusual in light of the time and 

expenses that have gone in the preparation of a ground water development plan 
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that did not indicate any major negative impacts to  the area groundwater. In 

fact, the water supply impact is now shifted to  the Mandarin area of Duval 

County, where well siting issues have drawn considerable public attention. 

Do you know whether or not Intercoastal attempted to  obtain this type of 

detailed information from Nocatee in the past? 

it is my understanding that Intercoastal requested all the latest information 

regarding ERC projections and phasing information, along with any utility related 

documents. 

Despite those efforts, was the filing of Nocatee on February 11,  2000 the first 

time that Intercoastal had been able to obtain much of the detailed information 

about Nocatee? 

Yes, the filings of February 1 7 ,  2000 revealed many key details that previously 

weren't provided or available. 

And did the information fited on February 1 1  , 2000 also alter some of the 

previous understandings and assumptions of Intercoastal which were based on 

information obtained from or about Nocatee in the past? 

Assumptions regarding ERC's, phasing, and location of Phase 1 development 

were changed based on the information filed on February 1 1 ,  2000. Based on 

a more defined location of Phase 1 development, we can now more accurately 

locate proposed transmission mains and treatment facilities. 

Do the filings of DDI and Nocatee on February 1 I ,  2000 change any aspect of 

Intercoastal's application or its filing? 

Yes, because of changes in the development which are shown for the first time 

in the February 1 1  documents, the Conceptual Master Plan, prepared by PBS&J 

has been modified. 
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Please describe Exhibit JM-2 and the reasons for f i ing Exhibit JM-2. 

Exhibit JM-2 is a Revised March 2000 Conceptual Master Plan that has been 

prepared based on additional data made available in the NUC and DDI filing of 

February 1 1, 2000. Revisions include Table of Contents, List of Tables, List of 

Figures, Section 3.0, Section 4.0, and Section 5.0. 

Does Exhibit JM-2 reflect your work product and opinions? 

Yes. 

Have you reviewed the representations of DDI and Nocatee as to  the reuse 

demand for the Nocatee project? 

Yes 

Do you have concerns or questions regarding that projected reuse demand? 

I think the projections for reclaimed water usage are on the high side, 

particularly for golf course irrigation. The projections for golf course irrigation 

usage, approximately 650,000 gallons per day, appear to  be more in line with 

what would be expected for south Florida rather than usage normally associated 

with central to  north Florida, which are typically, 300,000 to  400,000 gallons 

per day annual average. Many of the area golf courses have a greater problem 

with drainage of standing or casual water than a high demand for irrigation. 

This is due in part to  soil conditions and a relatively high groundwater table. 

Assuming that the reuse demand is Phase 1 is as represented, will Intercoastal 

be able to meet that demand? 

Yes 

Please describe the various scenarios under which Intercoastal could meet that  

demand. 

Even assuming the correctness of the reuse projections provided in the NUC and 
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DDI filing of February 1 I ,  2000, Intercoastal can meet the demands utilizing the 

reclaimed water generated from the proposed wastewater treatment facility and 

the excess reclaimed water from Intercoastal's Sawgrass Wastewater 

Treatment Plant, plus a temporary water supply ranging from a negligible 

135,000 gpd the first year to  10,000 gpd the third year. This temporary water 

supply would only be needed, if the projected reuse demands, which appear to  

be high, are actually achieved and if additional stormwater over the projected 

20% cannot be utilized. The stormwater utilization issue is discussed later. 

This temporary water supply can be obtained from an irrigation well drilled into 

the lower Floridian aquifer, as recommended in the "Nocatee Groundwater 

Supply Development Plan". 

In point of fact, and from an engineering standpoint, if Intercoastal entered into 

the same sort of relationship with JEA that is apparently contemplated by NUC, 

could Intercoastal put into place the same plan of service proposed by NUC in 

a timely, cost-efficient and effective manner? 

Certainly, Intercoastal already has in place the administrative and operational 

team needed to serve the immediate needs Nocatee. This service to Nocatee 

would be merely an extension of their existing service area and would need 

marginal expansion with the growth of Nocatee. If JEA is the wholesaler or if 

on-site treatment is provided, Intercoastal is still the most cost-efficient provider 

of utility service to Nocatee. 

Does NUC propose to  use stormwater to  meet part of the demand for reuse 

the Nocatee development. 

Yes 

Please describe their proposal in that regard. 
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According to their February ‘I 1, 2000 filing, they intend to  supplement their 

reuse supply by an additional 20% from stormwater . This would primarily be 

in the public access areas, such as golf courses, where the  reuse supply will 

supplement the lakes (stormwater ponds) that are used as the  source for the 

public access irrigation. This additional supplement from stormwater is not part 

of the reuse system or utility, since the reuse system supplements the lakes or 

ponds where public access irrigation water is withdrawn. 

In your opinion, can Intercoastal meet and/or comply with all the environmental 

concerns expressed by Nocatee’s Application for Development Approval? 

Certainly, there is no magic approach to  environmental issues. Permitting 

required by the regulatory agency(s) will dictate the impact on environmentally- 

sensitive areas of Nocatee. Any utility company providing service to  Nocatee 

will be required to  comply with all environmental issues and permitting 

requirements. The approach taken by NUC in the February 11, 2000 filing, to 

minimize the environmental impact on Nocatee by utilizing JEA as a wholesale 

supplier only serves to shift the environmental impact from Nocatee to  areas of 

Duval County, where there is already concern by Mandarin residents over new 

wells and their impact on the existing private wells in the area. This plan wit1 

ultimately require the expansion of JEA’s Mandarin WRF, in the already 

congested area near 1-295 and SR 13, or construction of future facilities within 

or near Nocatee. It will also require construction or expansion of long water, 

sewer, and reuse lines to provide service from these distant treatment facilities. 

Intercoastal’s plan to provide on-site water and wastewater treatment and 

return the Those large projects have both significant economic and 

environmental impacts not present with on-site services. Intercoastal’s plan to  
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provide on-site water and wastewater treatment and return the reclaimed water 

to the recharge the area’s water resources shows not only environmental 

concern for Nocatee, but also for the surrounding community. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 

Yes 
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PREFILED REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF JIM MILLER 

Are you the same Jim Miller who has previously caused testimony t o  be filed 

in this case? 

Yes. 

Please tell the Commission panel what you have read or reviewed prior t o  filing 

this Prefiled Rebuttal Testimony. 

I have reviewed the Direct Testimonies of Edward Cordova, Dr.T. James 

Tofflemire, P.E., Scott Trigg, Caroline Silvers, Charles R. Gauthier, Doug Miller, 

Deborah Swain, and Jay Skelton; the Prefiled Direct Testimonies of Scott Kelly, 

Tim Perkins, Richard Olson, and Patricia Arenas; the Intervenor’s Testimonies 

of Mike Burton, M.L. Forrester, Jay Skelton, Doug Miller, and Deborah Swain; 

the Depositions of Doug Miller and Deborah Swain; and other related 

documents. 

Have you reviewed the deposition of Doug Miller? 

I have reviewed both the May 1,  2000 deposition of Doug Miller, representing 

NUC and the April IO, 2000 telephonic deposition of Doug Miller taken at the 

instance of the staff of the PSC. 

Please explain any concerns which were raised 

information. 

The main concern that was raised in Mr. Miller 

n you mind by the review of this 

s April IO, 2000 deposition, as 

it has been all along, is the seemingly high projections for reuse for Nocatee. 

Although, ICU has accepted these values for use in their plan, in order to  show 

that demands can be met, 1 still question these high usage rates. While the golf 

course usage is now stated at 650,000 gallons per day during dry weather 

months, the annual average daily usage has not be stated. I t  can only be 
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assumed that Mr. Miller has now conceded that the annual usage rate for golf 

courses in north Florida are much lower, as originally noted by ICU. 

In his testimony, Mr. Miller states that he believes certain commitments 

regarding utility service will become conditions of development approval, and 

that Intecoastal's plan of service will be inconsistent with those commitments. 

Please comment on this aspect of Mr. Miller's testimony. 

There is nothing unique about NUC's ability to  meet the commitments that may 

become a part of the development approval. The environmental considerations, 

development schedules, etc. placed by in the Application for Development 

Approval appear to  be no more than a tool used by the developer and NUC to 

portray NUC as the only viable candidate to serve the Nocatee development. 

Their exclusive Letter of Intent with JEA has put NUC in a position to force ICU 

or any other utility provider out of consideration. Many of the initial plans for 

utility service considered by NUC included on-site plants, etc. It was not until 

a Letter of Intent was signed with JEA that development constraints and other 

conditions began to  appear in the various testimonies and application revisions. 

Had JEA been willing to negotiate with ICU, it is clear from the experience and 

economy of scale that a ICU/JEA arrangement would benefit the ultimate 

customer more than the NUC proposal. The proposed conditions of 

development (NEWRAP) that will likely become a part of the final development 

order, at first glance, appears to completely eliminate any environmental impact 

and create a "win-win" situation for everyone. However, this impact on the 

environment doesn't disappear, it is merely shifted to  other areas outside the 

development, such as the Mandarin area of Duval County, which is already 

suffering because of uncontrolled growth and is currently under strict water 
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conservation orders by the St. Johns River Water Management District. 

Is the ICU proposal for supplying reclaimed water or reuse similar to the plan 

proposed by NUC? 

ICU proposes to  provided closed storage reservoirs and repumping facilities the 

same as NUC. However, ICU‘s reclaimed water supply will come from the 

existing and proposed ICU treatment facilities, unless a relationship with JEA 

is ultimately deemed by Intercoastal and the Commission to  be in the ultimate 

customer’s best interest. 

In your opinion, can ICU meet Nocatee’s timetable for the provision of 

construction water by 2001 ? 

I believe the timetable is achievable if the issues of this application are resolved 

in a timely manner. Initially, I am aware of Mr. Forrester’s testimony regarding 

a possible discrepancy in the development’s timetable between what has been 

said in t he  press and what was represented in NUC’s application. I agree with 

Mr. Forrester‘s conclusion that IU will either be able to  offer construction water 

by the provision of temporary facilities or, if in fact the development is delayed, 

by permanent facilities which will be in place at the time construction water is 

demanded. I would note that with regard to  the effect of this proceeding on 

meeting these timetables, that this case will affect both applicants equally in 

terms of delaying their ability to put into place the facilities necessary to provide 

construction water. 

Please respond to  the testimony of Mr. Miller that the wastewater force mains 

proposed by ICU are inadequately sized to  meet the needs of the first phase of 

development. 

It appears that  Mr. Miller’s statement was made prior to  reviewing the revised 
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Conceptual Master Plan prepared by PBS&J. This revised plan was prepared 

after additional development information was released by Nocatee. Accordingly, 

Mr. Miller’s statement in that regard is in error. 

Please comment upon Nocatee‘s suggestion that 650,000 gpd is the correct 

figure for Phase 1 reuse demand on the golf course. 

Mr. Miller, in his telephonic deposition on April 10, 2000, finally clarifies that 

the 650,000 gpd is the peak demand during dry weather months. He still fails 

t o  state an annual average daily demand for golf course irrigation, which in our 

opinion is typically in the range of 300,000 to  400,000 gallons per day, as I 

stated in my intervenor‘s testimony of March 17, 2000. 

Based on your experience and expertise, would you anticipate that Intercoastal 

would be able to expand its existing consumptive use permit as necessary to  

provide service to the territory Intercoastal proposes to  add to  its certificated 

territory? 

Yes. Based on my knowtedge of Intercoastal and of the local area and the 

information which 1 have reviewed in preparation for my testimony in this case, 

I would expect that the Water management District would be receptive t o  the 

application of Intercoastal in that regard. Of course, this Commission’s approval 

of Intercoastal’s application is a prerequisite to that process. However, and 

particularly in light of the fact that Intercoastal has a history of working closely 

and cooperatively with the Water Management District, 1 would not anticipate 

any significant hurdles in the CUP process for Intercoastal if its application 

before the Commission has granted. 

From an engineering standpoint, do you believe that if in fact tntercoastal is not 

ultimately the service provider for the Walden Chase development that i t  will 
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affect Intercoastal's application or proposal in any material way? 

No. Intercoastal's plan of service is adaptable, as any utility's plan of service 

must be, such that it can be implemented even if developments not currently 

foreseen are constructed and/or even if some developments which are currently 

planned do not, in fact, come to  fruition. Intercoastal's plan of service could be 

implemented in harmony with the County's proposed plan to  render service to  

that development. 

Have you reviewed the testimony of M.L. Forrester? 

Yes 

Do you agree with the testimony of Mr. Forrester, on pages 10 and 1 1. 

Yes, tbe ICU revised CMP force main sizing was based on new data provided 

by NUC's engineers. However, I do notice a considerable amount of conflict 

between the Direct Testimonies of Doug Miller (NUC) and Scott Kelly (JEA). In 

Scott Kelly's direct testimony and exhibit SDK-2 he indicated that JEA is 

constructing "oversized" lines (20" water and 16" sewer force main) t o  a point 

south of the intersection of U.S. 1 and C.R. 210 to  serve Walden Chase and 

Phase 1 of Nocatee. In Doug Miller's direct testimony and utility maps prepared 

2/9/2000, the JEA lines were shown as 24" water and 20" sewer force main, 

with Nocatee requiring a Phase I connection of 18" for water and 16" for the 

sewer force main. Additionally Mr. Miller stated that the point of connection to  

JEA will be at the intersection of U.S. 1 with the Duval County line, while the 

maps prepared by his engineering firm indicates the Phase 1 point of connection 

at  U.S. 1 and C.R. 21 0. This still leaves some confusion regarding line sizing 

and points of connection, particularly since JEA's lines serve not only Nocatee, 

but Walden Chase and Marshall Creek developments. 
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Please discuss the provision of bulk service as proposed by JEA. 

Wastewater treatment for Nocatee through the bulk service agreement with JEA 

will be initially provided at the Mandarin WRF located near Interstate 295 a t  

State Road 13. This facility has a design capacity of 7.5 million gallons per day 

with current average daily flow of approximately 5.0 million gallons per day. The 

plant currently discharges its effluent to the St. Johns River. Construction of 

reclaimed water storage and pumping station is scheduled to get underway, 

shortly, to divert a portion of the effluent for reuse. Unless JEA is planning to 

provide future service to  Nocatee from a new treatment facility, expansion of 

the Mandarin WRF will have to  occur in the near future. Even Phase I flows will 

"trigger" design of expansion to  the Mandarin WRF, unless other treatment 

facilities are planned in the area. Expansion of these facilities or even new 

facilities in or near the Mandarin area will likely cause "political turmoil" in an 

area that has historically been protective of its environment. In recent months 

the Mandarin residents have also been complaining about the impact JEA wells 

are having on existing private wells serving many of the residencies along the 

river. There will even more concern with the Mandarin residents find that  their 

water supply will now be tapped by St. John's County (Nocatee) residents. 

Ultimate JEA planning provides a water supply coming from the westerly areas 

of the county via a submerged pipeline crossing the St. Johns River. However, 

this pipeline and supply will not be in place to minimize the perception that 

Mandarin is being sacrificed to preserve some self imposed environmental 

constraints initiated by the Nocatee developers. The Nocatee Groundwater 

Supply Development Plan, prepared by Nocatee but now apparently abandoned 

by the developer, outlines the orderly development of an on-site groundwater 

6 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

1 1  

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

supply for Nocatee that minimizes the impact on the environment. NUC has 

elected to forgo this extensive study in favor of a bulk agreement for water 

from JEA that will not impact Nocatee, but will have a definite impact on areas 

of Duval County. To rely on bulk service from JEA has no more of a positive 

environmental impact than providing on-site supply and treatment. It just shifts 

the environmental impact to other areas and serves no more purpose than a 

marketing toot for Nocatee. The ICU plan provides on-site supply, treatment, 

and disposal while still maintaining environmental sensitivity. It also utilizes an 

existing effluent source to supplement reuse demands, thus reducing or 

eliminating a discharge io the Intracoastal Waterway. 

Are you familiar with JEA’s proposed reuse plans? 

Yes. 

Have you reviewed Mr. Forrester’s Rebuttal Testimony, a t  pages 5 through 7 

thereof, where he discusses that reuse program and are you in agreement with 

his conclusions? 

Yes, I have reviewed that testimony and I share Mr. Forrester’s opinions in that 

regard. Under any foreseeable scenario, JEA will only reuse a fraction of the 

water generated by the Nocatee development while Intercoastal proposes to 

recycle 100% of its wastewater flows (including 100% of Nocatee‘s 

wastewater). 

In your opinion, from an engineering standpoint, is the proposed plan of service 

of Intercoastal superior to the proposed plan of service of NUC? 

Yes, based on my review of all the information and consistent with my 

testimony in this case, it is my opinion that ICU has proposed a superior plan 

of service to that proposed by NUC. Additionally, as discussed elsewhere in the 
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testimony of Intercoastal's witnesses, even to  the extent the Commission 

determines that NUC bas proposed a preferable plan of service by and through 

its utilization of JEA, that same type of cooperative agreement could in all 

Ii kelihood be implemented between ICU, should it be certificated this territory 

by the Commission, and JEA. In other words, under either scenario, I believe 

that Intercoastal would be the superior provider of service and is the preferable 

applicant for this territory. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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SUPPLEMENTAL INTERVENOR'S TESTIMONY OF JAMES H. MILLER 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is James H. Miller. My business address is 7785 Baymeadows Way, Suite 202, 

Jacltsonville, Florida 32256 

By wlioni are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am a vice president of PBS&J, a full service engineering firm. I am a registered 

professional engineer in Florida, North Carolina, and Alabama, and have prepared the Utility 

Master Plan for Intercoastal Utilities, Inc. 

Are you the same James H. Miller who has previously filed testimony in this case? 

Yes. 

What have you reviewed in preparation for your participation in this case? 

I have reviewed the testimony and exhibits previously filed in this case. 

Have you also reviewed the Supplemental Direct Testimonies of Douglas Miller and 

Ms. Deborah Swain filed July 3 1 ? 2000, on behalf of Nocatee Utility Coiyoratioii (NUC) in 

th i s proceeding ? 

Yes. 

ROSE, SUNDSTROM & BENTLEY, LLP 

2548 BLAIRSTONE PINES DRIVE, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 
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Were there any poi-tions of those testimonies which caused you any concerns? 

Ms. Swain’s testimony included a rate comparison ofNUC’s proposed rates which I believe 

does not fairly present a picture of what is likely to happen, in terms of the type of customers 

that will present and the type of usage rates that will exist, in the Nocatee development. In 

Ms. Swain’s testimony, there seenied to be a heavy emphasis on the lower water usage levels 

(3,000 and 5,000 gallons per month) in comparing rates of NUC vs. ICU. This is in direct 

conflict to the higher usage levels of 10,000 and 12,000 gallons per month used throughout 

testimonies by Douglas Miller. Based on my knowledge of this area, my understanding of 

the project, and the other information I have reviewed, and coiiversations in which I have 

participated, it would be my opinion that a more valid comparison would have to focus on 

water usage of 10,000 gallons per month 01- higher. In my opinion, it is very unlikely that 

t h e e  (3) of the assumed water usage benclunarks, namely 3,000,5,000 and 5,333 gallons per 

month (all which show that NIJC’s rates will be lower than Intercoastal’s), actually represent 

usage rates which are likeIy to be realized. In fact, iii this “up-scaled” neighborhood, the 

lower rate categories would most likely be non-existent. 

What other specific concerns do you have? 

I am still very concerned about some of the adverse enviroimental impact that “NEWFL4.F”’ 

may impose 011 other areas of St. Jolms County, as well as Duval County. I mentioned Duval 

County because, to the extent that environmental considerations are important, I think it is 

important to remeinber that the “enviroixnent” does not stop at the boundaries of Nocatee. 

These proposals should be viewed within their larger context. This “ N E W ”  policy, 

iinposed by the developers, appears to be in direct conflict with the “local sources first” 

policy that is adhered to in most areas of the State. The Coinniissioii is aware that the 

Nocatee developers coinniissioned an expensive and elaborate water resources study which 

essentially indicates adequate resources within the Nocatee development to support service 
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Q- 
A. 

to that development as plaimed by Intercoastal. The water resources study prepared for 

Nocatee indicates an adequate water supply on-site to meet the needs of Nocatee, yet NUC, 

through “NEWRAP”, the use of an on-site water supply is not permitted. This seems to be 

no more than an attempt to lock-in JEA as the utility supplying potable water to Nocatee. 

It also indirectly passes along to the Nocatee customer the hydraulic capacity cost of the 

proposed multi-million dollar raw water pipeline across the S t. Jolms River, which provides 

a new source of supply for the Mandarin and southside grid of 3EA’s water system. Another 

area of concein regarding “ N E W ”  is the supposed prohibition of providing on-site 

wastewater treatment at Nocatee. First of all, I ani referring to this as a “prohibition” only 

because Nocatee has refelTed to it in that way. In fact, I am not aware that such a 

“prohibition” has really been imposed by any goveiimental authority. Under NUC’s plan 

of service with JEA, tlie raw wastewater is transmitted long distances iii oversized force 

inailis to the Mandarin Water Reclaination Facility (W). The Mandallii WRF is currently 

plagued with intennittent odor problems from septic wastewater. The additional flows 

anticipated from Nocatee, transmitted via long and oversized force mains, seem to amplify 

an odor problein that already exists at the Mandarin WRF. As explained in earlier testimony, 

tlie lengthy travel tiiiie for any sewage in the these long force mains in and of itself 

exacerbates any odor problem which the receiving plant may already be experiencing. 

What about ICU’s ability to provide tlie saine level of service as proposed by NUC? 

In my opinion, ICU can provide tlie same level of service as NUC. The current level of 

service, both water quality and O&M, meet or exceed the levels proposed by NUC though 

the Agreement with JEA. ICU has higher treatment constraints imposed 011 their wastewater 

treatment plant than JEA’s Mandarin WRF. This has historically been the case with many 

of the sinaller area utilities in northeast Florida. A good example of this is the treatment 

levels imposed on the Julingtoii Creek Wastewater Treatment plant when it was originally 
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Q. 

A. 

7 1 0 5  

designed for General Development Utilities, prior to the acquisition by JEA. The initial 

discharge to the St. Johns River for the 250,000 gpd plant was AWT (5-5-3-1) standards, 

while the 7.5 mgd Mandarin plant, only a few iniles downstream has a much less restrictive 

peiiiiit. JEA is gradually improving the levels of treatment in their wastewater system. 

Because of the size of the system and the capital costs of such improvements, the process is 

slow and will eventually be passed on to all JEA customers. ICU’s wastewater treatment 

facility already meets the standards that JEA is trying to achieve. The capital costs presented 

by ICU reflect this level of treatment. It is not surprising that there would be increased costs 

attached to the services of any utility which was providing a higher level of treatment (and 

thus a higher level of service to its customers), While “NEWRAP”, which is an arbitrary 

standard imposed by the developer, sets Nocatee aside as a “pristine” community while 

adversely impacting their neighbors, ICU can provide an environnieiitally sound plan to 

serve Nocatee. Clearly, with a wholesale agreement with JEA, ICU can provide an identical 

level of service as proposed by NUC. The only difference at this point is that NUC has 

imposed a “sole source” condition to the utility service provider. This “sole source service 

agreement” is no different than awarding a sole source contract for supplying equipment or 

other services without fair competitive negotiations. The one that ultimately pays the price 

i s the consumer . 

What about the agreement to “upsize” the backbone water and wastewater transmission 

mains? 

As I mentioned before, the “upsized” or “oversized” mains can have an adverse effect (i.e. 

septic sewage, wliicli increases odor problems). As far as capital cost, I would agree there 

would be some savings, but I doubt it would be in the 50% range. Also, the connection cost 

to these “upsized” mains will be somewhat higher (Le. 24” x S” vs. 12” x 8” connection), 

negating some of the savings. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q, 

A. 

Q *  

What are the “j oint projects”? 

As I understand it, the joint projects are projects where JEA proposes to run lines larger 

through tlie Nocatee developinelit than actually necessary to serve the development itself. 

At this point, the joint project we know about enters the development on the westem side and 

exits on the eastem side. That exit point is in St. Joluis County. Why JEA is proposing that 

line to be coiistructed in that fashion, and what customers will be served by that line, is 

unknown at this point. However, I would say it is a clear indication that JEA believes: 

(a) there is some need for service in that part of St. Jolms County; (b) that JEA is the 

appropriate entity to provide that service; and (c) that it intends to provide that sei-vice when 

that need matures. Certainly, tlie way the joint project is configured indicates that JEA’s 

intentions in this iimnediate area in St. Jolms County are not limited to merely bulking 

service to NUC. 

Mi-. Miller, have you read the testimony of M.L. Forrester? 

Yes, I have. 

Do you agree with the testimony of Mr. Forrester to the extent that it touches upon matters 

which are also within your expertise, and have you discussed these matters with 

Mr. Forrester? 

Yes, to both questions. Yes, I do share Mr. Forrester’s opinion as reflected in his 

Intervenor’s Testimony, aiid I agree that the possibility for substantial inodifications to the 

.TEA-NUC proposed service plans exists. In fact, I would hope that JEA and the Nocatee 

developinelit would propose to provide service along the same lines as Intercoastal, to wit: 

they will implement whichever plan of service and method of service, during the long period 

of build out of this development, that is in the best interest of the customers, aiid that they 

will do so in the most environmentally sensitive, efficient, and effective manner possible. 

Have you reviewed Mr. Forrester’s Intervenor’s testimony regarding his anticipated usage 
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A. 

Q. 

A. 

rates in the Nocatee development, and have you discussed the same with him? 

Yes,  again to both questions, and 1 agree with his conclusions in that regard. I don’t believe 

Ms. Swain’s analysis reflects a reasonable coinparison of residential bills based upon 

expected use witliiii the area, as I indicated earlier. 

Does this conclude your testinioiiy? 

Yes ,  it does. 

I ntercoa\psc\Supp Interv-miller.tmy 
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BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q Mr. Miller, please provide a brief summary o f  those 
testimonies. 

A My Intervenor's testimony primarily covered the 
corrections that were made in the Exhibit JM-2 which was the 
result of additional data being obtained from Nocatee and from 
England, Thims and Miller as to phasing, flows, things o f  that 
nature that caused us to produce a new document, the conceptual 
master plan that's labeled JM-2. 

We also in the Intervenor's testimony discuss the - - 

I discuss my feelings about the golf course flow projections 
for reuse irrigation where M r .  Miller had used a - -  somewhat 
what we call a high number, in the 650,000 gallon a day range. 
We would expect that number to be closer to 300,000 to 400,000 
gallons a day on an average daily but on an annual average 
basis. I also noted here, based on our plan o f  service where 
we are utilizing the reuse from the easterly service area, or 
the existing service area, that we would have a - - just a very 
limited amount of need for water to meet the reuse demands. 
The first year would be 135,000 gallons a day, and the third 
year would be 10,000 gallons a day, and after that, we would 
have a balance and be able to meet the reuse demands utilizing 
the excess water o f  1.2 MGD coming from the existing service 
area plus what we produce from the wastewater plant in the 
proposed Nocatee area. This would actually reduce or 
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y eliminate our discharge i n t o  the Intracoastal 

Now, I rea l i ze  tha t  i t ' s  wet weather discharge, and 

we're dealing wi th  an annual average. An annual average i s  

whole year put together. We may have a day tha t  we are 

discharging 700,000, 800,000 gallons a day or  3 m i l l i o n  gallons 

a day, but annual, we w i l l  be below what we are discharging 

now, which i s  as much as 1.2 which we are permitted fo r .  And 

the Intracoastal Waterway north o f  

locat ion was based on a locat ion picked 

tha t  l i ne  i s  located i n  

State Road 210, and the 

by DEP. 

When they not 

1 onger d i  scharge i n  the 

would - - he could use a 

f i e d  M r .  James tha t  they could no 

Guana Lake, they t o l d  him tha t  i f  he 

QBEL t h a t  was underweight, and he wou 

contr ibute t o  the cost o f  t ha t  and they would p i ck  a new 

discharge point. And based on the QBEL tha t  was done f o r  the 

Intracoastal Waterway, there was no harm found i n  tha t  

discharge tha t  he was permitted f o r  up t o  1.2, but  was t o l d  

tha t  he would be able t o  put more than tha t  i f  he needed t o  a t  

some point  i f  he got permitted for it. But essent ia l ly ,  what 

we are proposing i s  reducing t h a t  amount by using the reuse 

coming from the ex is t ing  f a c i l i t i e s .  

I n  my rebut ta l  testimony, again, I noted the 

corrections tha t  Mr. Doug M i l l e r  made regarding the reuse f o r  

go1 f courses. We d i d  say t h a t  i t  was - - you know, could be an 
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average o f  somewhat less than what he had mentioned before. 

That was i n  a telephone deposition o f  h is.  

NEWRAP. Again, I feel l i k e  NEWRAP i s  something tha t  was 

purposely or unintentional proposed by the developers tha t  

eliminated Intercoastal Ut i1  i t i e s  from serving Nocatee. Yes, 

we do now have t o  put plants on the Nocatee s i t e  because we 

don ' t  have a f a c i l i t y  l i k e  the Mandarin wastewater plant tha t  

they are proposing t o  use. However, Mandarin has only got 

about a m i  11 i on  t o  a m i  11 i on  and a ha1 f gal 1 ons o f  capacity 

l e f t  without expansion. Mandarin can be expanded t o  

15 m i l l i o n  gallons a day. That excludes everything else coming 

from the Mandarin area tha t  be added i n  the future, which leads 

me t o  bel ieve tha t  JEA i s  going t o  have t o  b u i l d  another p lant ,  

and i t  may be r i g h t  next door t o  Nocatee. It may not be i n  the 

environmental boundaries, but i t  may be j u s t  r i g h t  next door. 

I also discuss the 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Let me ask you a question 

about that .  It appears tha t  Nocatee does not want the - -  

especial ly the sewage treatment p lant  on i t s  property because 

o f  odor. Why couldn' t  Intercoastal purchase a s i t e  o f f  o f  

Nocatee i n  order t o  el iminate tha t  concern? 

THE WITNESS: I would have to ,  I guess, d i r e c t  t ha t  

t o  M r .  James, but I see no reason why they couldn ' t  f i n d  a s i t e  

o f f  of Nocatee i f  a s i t e  was avai lable t o  put a plant.  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Because the e a r l i e r  testimony 

from Intercoastal was tha t  they were unable t o  locate a sewage 
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treatment plant o f f  the Nocatee s i t e .  And I j u s t  wondered, you 

know, there must be some property avai 1 ab1 e somewhere where 

t h a t  could be accomplished. 

THE WITNESS: Well, I th ink  tha t  s i t e  would have t o  

be included i n  the franchise area. The area would have t o  be 

modified i n  order t o  encompass tha t  s i t e  and f ind ing  tha t  s i t e .  

I ' m  sure there's something out there t h a t ' s  available. But 

cer ta in ly ,  i n  my opinion, JEA i s  going t o  have t o  do something 

o f f - s i t e  i f  they comply w i th  Nocatee. They can ' t  put 

everythi ng i n Mandarin . Mandarin a1 ready has odor probl ems, 

and a l l  we're doing i s  adding more odors f o r  the longer force 

mains going t o  Mandarin, and we're j u s t  s h i f t i n g  the 

environmental impact from Nocatee t o  Duval County up t o  

Mandarin, which i s  a1 ready an environmentally sensi t ive area as 

f a r  as the residents are concerned. 

As f a r  as water supply, again, we located the wel ls  

on Nocatee parcel because tha t  was ins ide our proposed 

franchise area. Now, admittedly, JEA has got a CUP. They are 

now bui ld ing a new 48-inch waterl ine across the S t .  Johns River 

t o  b r ing  even more water from the west side, but tha t  s t i l l  

doesn't discount the f a c t  t h a t  the Mandarin, which i s  a t  the 

nediate area north o f  Nocatee, i s  the area t h a t ' s  been i n  the 

papers over the past s i x  months about wel ls  going dry  and the 

neighbors complaining t h e i r  i r r i g a t i o n  well  i s  going dry  

3ecause of the water usage i n  tha t  area. Now, again, I t h ink  
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i t ' s  j u s t  a s h i f t i n g  o f  the environmental impact from Nocatee 

to another area t o  get it out o f  t h e i r  neighborhood. Again, 

tha t ' s  my opinion. And whether o r  not - -  I mean, I th ink  JEA 

cloes a good job w i th  t h e i r  system, but i n  t h i s  case, I th ink  

de're a l l  being bl indfolded by th ink ing tha t  we're not going t o  

j e t  r i g h t  adjacent t o  Nocatee and b u i l d  something. And a l l  

i t ' s  doing i s  keeping i t  outside the a r t i f i c i a l  boundary o f  

Uocatee. 

So, again, we don ' t  meet the conditions o f  the 

3evelopment order, but we also feel  the development order can 

De changed. We w i l l  be reducing our discharge almost t o  zero 

i n  the Intracoastal Waterway, and the DEP has already found 

that t o  be sui table fo r  discharge. I n  fac t ,  they t o l d  

Yr. James tha t  he could discharge even more than what he's 

permitted fo r .  

$400,000 study was done on tha t  por t ion o f  the Intracoastal 

daterway. And i n  fact ,  they picked the point  they are 

discharging. 

points o f  my rebuttal  testimony. 

I mean, the QBEL study - -  I th ink  about a 

I th ink  tha t  bas ica l l y  covers - -  summarizes the 

And in my supplemental testimony, again, I discussed 
the NEWMP and the problems they have a t  Mandarin now wi th  

odors and a l l ,  and I also made a b r i e f  comment on 

Mr. Forrester 's testimony about service area, which i s  nothing 

major. That concludes my summary. 

MR. WHARTON: We would tender the witness for cross. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Me1 son a 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q Just as a po int  o f  fac t ,  how f a r  north o f  the County 
Road 210 bridge i s  Intercoastal 's  ex is t ing  discharge point? 

A I believe i t ' s  about - -  I want t o  say 5,000 t o  6,000 

exactly without - - don ' t  know feet north o f  the bridge. I 

Q Roughly a mile? 

A A mile. 

Q Okay. Is i t  your 

f i r s t  requires water used i n  

S t .  Johns County? 

o s i t i o n  t h  t local  sources 

St. Johns County t o  be produced i n  

A 

available, i t  should be used f i r s t ,  yes. 

Q 

That i s  my opinion, t h a t  i f  an adequate supply i s  

Okay. You propose I believe i t ' s  18 wells w i th in  the 

Nocatee devel opment ; i s tha t  correct? 

A I proposed exactly what was i n  the water resources 

study provided by Nocatee. 

Q Do you know what was in the water resources study 

provided by Nocatee? 

A I'm sorry, repeat tha t .  

Q Do you know what was i n  the water resources study 

provided by Nocatee? 

A I read the water resource study, yes. I don' t  have 

i t  i n  f ron t  o f  me t o  quote d i f f e r e n t  areas o f  it. 
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Q Do you reca l l  whether i t  r e l i e d  on 18 wel ls a l l  

located i n  S t .  Johns County? 

A I don' t  reca l l .  I basica l ly  use the capacity o f  the 
wel ls tha t  they had shown. We d i d n ' t  spot the wel ls  f o r  our 

conceptual master plan. 

Q But you indicated tha t  you plan t o  use the plan from 

the Nocatee groundwater study. 

A We plan t o  use the water resources indicated i n  the 

Nocatee water resources study t o  obtain the water supply f o r  

Nocatee. 

Q And are you aware tha t  the water resources study 

designated speci f ic  w e l l  locations, and the study was based on 

those we1 1 1 ocations? 

A I'm aware tha t  they d i d  some t e s t  wel ls and things 

l i k e  that ,  but  tha t  also doesn't determine the f i n a l  loca t ion  

o f  wells. 

Q My question i s :  Do you reca l l  the groundwater 

resource study speci f ied spec i f i c  well locations, and i t  was 

based on those well locations tha t  there was a conclusion tha t  

there was an adequate water resource? 

A I don' t  r e c a l l .  

Q Okay. Are you aware t h a t  a l l  o f  the wel ls  shown i n  

tha t  groundwater study are located i n  S t .  Johns County? 

A I couldn' t  t e l l  you f o r  sure, no. 
Q Let me show you a map, and ask i f  you recognize tha t  
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as the map you reviewed from the Nocatee groundwater study. 

A I believe it i s .  

Q And does tha t  show well  locations as green dots? 

A Yes, i t  does. 

Q And does i t  show g o l f  course i r r i g a t i o n  wells as red 

dots? 

A Yes, i t  does. 

Q And does i t  show tha t  a l l  o f  those wel ls are located 

i n  S t .  Johns County? 

A 

Q 
That's what i t  indicates, yes. 

Does i t  also show tha t  the Nocatee development i s  

located i n  both Duval and S t .  Johns County? 

A Yes, i t  does. 

Q Under your in terpretat ion o f  loca l  sources f i r s t ,  

would t h a t  po l i cy  be violated by serving Duval County water 

demand out o f  wells i n  S t .  Johns County? 

A No, i t  wouldn't. 

Q But i t  would be v io la ted i n  the opposite direct ion,  

i f  you served S t .  Johns County out o f  wel ls i n  Duval County? 

A Yes, considering tha t  the wel ls are not located i n  

the area o f  the development. 

Q And the area of the development i s  a primary water 

use caution area? 

A That's correct. 

Q And the wel ls t h a t  would serve Nocatee under i t s  plan 
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o f  service are not i n  a primary water use caution area? 

A I can ' t  say tha t  f o r  sure. I know some o f  the South 

Grid wells are. 
Q With regard t o  reuse - -  

MR. MELSON: And, M r .  Chairman, l e t  me ask tha t  t h i s  

map be marked fo r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  as Exhibi t  42. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

(Exhibi t  42 marked f o r  i den t i f i ca t i on . )  

Show i t  marked as Exhib i t  

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q You have talked about discharges t o  the r i v l  

1.2 m i l l i o n  gallons a day: i s  t ha t  correct? 

A That 's correct. 

42. 

lr o f  

Q What i s  the average d a i l y  flow i n  the Sawgrass 

wastewater treatment p l  ant today? 

A Today's average d a i l y  flow - -  i f  you don ' t  mind, I'll 

don' t  know i t  exactly. 1 ook i n  my report.  I 

Q Sure. 

A Okay. I be 

.8 MGD. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  

the plant? 

A Right. 

ieve the average flow r i g h t  now i s  about 

So about ha1 f the permit t ing capacity o f  

Q The reuse availab 

less what goes t o  Sawgrass, 

e t o  Nocatee won't be a m i  11 i o n  two 

i t  w i l l  be whatever flows are 

actual ly being experienced there less what goes t o  Sawgrass; 
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correct? 

A A t  the time o f  Nocatee' s needs 

Q Right. And d id  you project  when the ex is t ing  

Sawgrass p l  ant w i  1 1 reach capacity? 

A I believe we have projected Sawgrass out u n t i l  - - 

It was projected a l l  the way out taking a nominal okay. 

6 percent growth out t o  2010. 

Q So under your project ion, i t ' s  not u n t i l  2010 tha t  

there 's  actual ly 1.5 m i l l i o n  gallons a day on an average dai 

basis? 

A That's correct, but we're dealing w i th  project ions 

both ends, Nocatee's project ions and Intercoastal I s  

Y 

on 

projections. We have no way o f  knowing t h a t  e i ther  one o f  them 

are going t o  pan out. 

Q And what i s  your project ion o f  the average d a i l y  use 

for golf course i r r i g a t i o n ?  

A I believe I used M r .  M i l l e r ' s  pro ject ion o f  650,000 

gallons a day, which I f e l t  was f ine.  We used a l l  o f  h i s  

projections. 

Q 

g o l f  course? 

A 

What do you assume i n  your study goes t o  the Sawgrass 

They are obl igated t o  provide 300,000 gallons a day 

on an average annual basis. 

Q "They" meaning Intercoastal ' s  ob1 iga t i on  t o  provide 

t o  the g o l f  course? 
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A That's true. 

Q 

g o l f  course? 

I n  your mind, i s  tha t  a more typ ica l  average f o r  a 

A I n  north Florida, I th ink  300,000 t o  400,000 gallons 

a day i s .  

Q 

A That's correct. 

Q 

And t h a t ' s  f o r  an 18-hole g o l f  course? 

Are you aware tha t  the Sawgrass g o l f  course i s  

27 holes? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q So would a good annual average f o r  i t  be about one 

and a h a l f  times 350,000 t o  400,000 a day? 

A It possibly could be, but i t ' s  my understanding tha t  

the arrangement i s  f o r  300,000 gallons a day on an annual 

average. 

Q And you're not going t o  give them any more than 

you ' r e  ob1 igated to? 

A 

Q Commissioner Jaber asked Mr. Perkins, I believe, i f  

I ' m  not i n  a pos i t ion t o  make tha t  decision. 

the lack - -  assuming - -  she said, "Assume JEA's consumptive use 

permit does not include enough water f o r  Phase I o f  the Nocatee 

development. Would tha t  be an ind ica t ion  tha t  JEA does not 

have the technical a b i l i t i e s  t o  serve?" Do you reca l l  t ha t  

l i n e  o f  questions? Were you here when t h a t  was asked? 
A I reca l l  the question, yes. 
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Q Does Intercoastal have a consumptive use permit tha t  

allows the use o f  any water t o  serve Nocatee? 

A A t  t h i s  t ime,  they don' t .  

Q And, i n  fact ,  i n  the ordinary course o f  business fo r  

a p r iva te  u t i l i t y ,  i s n ' t  a PSC c e r t i f i c a t i o n  a prerequis i te t o  

even app7 y i  ng f o r  a consumptive use permit? 

A I believe so, yes. 

Q Let me tu rn  you now t o  your wr i t ten  testimony i t s e l f .  

And I ' m  going t o  s t a r t  w i th  your Intervenor testimony, and ask 

you t o  - -  you don' t  need t o  read i t  aloud, but i f  you t u r n  t o  

Page 3 and read t o  yourself the question and answer t h a t  begins 

on Line 11 down through the end o f  Line 24. 

A Page 3? 
Q Page 3. 

A I don' t  have a question beginning on Line 11. Hold 

m. Wai t  a minute. 

MR. MELSON: Counsel, do you have a copy t h a t  matches 

~rp wi th  h i s  1 ine numbers? 

MR. WHARTON: Sure. 

This may have been pr in ted  out d i f f e ren t .  

MR. WHARTON: It may be a formatting - -  
A 

3Y MR. MELSON: 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  Now, we're i n  the Intervenor a t  Page 3, 

,ine 11, and j u s t  i f  you'd read - - 
A Line ll? 
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Q Yes, s i r ,  read t o  yourself t ines 11 through 24, and 

then I 've got a couple o f  questions. 

A Okay. 

Q And I want t o  get the t iming o f  some documents. Your 

Exhib i t  JM-1, your f i r s t  report,  was December 1999; correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And your revised J M - 2  was March o f  2000; correct? 

A Correct. 

Q And March o f  2000 i s  the time t h i s  Intervenor 

testimon was f i l e d ;  correct? 

A Yes, I believe. 

Q And i f  I understand your testimony a t  Lines 

11 through 24, i t ' s  essent ia l ly  t ha t  between the t i m e  o f  your 

December report  and your March report,  Nocatee U t i  1 i t y  

Corporation changed i t s  plan o f  service t o  one which involves 

service from JEA; i s  tha t  r i g h t ?  

A Based on the information tha t  was furnished t o  me, 

the additional data provided by Nocatee t o  Intercoastal which 

i s  passed along t o  me, they d i d  not ind icate service by JEA. 

I n  fact ,  there were several d i f f e r e n t  plans l a i d  out on 

hand sketches and d i f fe ren t  hydraulic analysis, e t  cetera. And 

then a f te r  the report came out - -  o r  a f t e r  the d i r e c t  testimony 

f i l i n g ,  we were able t o  get addit ional data, including the ADA, 

the f i n a l  on it, the f i n a l  submittal, and some addit ional 

phasing data tha t  we d i d n ' t  have before. 
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Q I believe you t o l d  us yesterday you were h i red i n  

t h i s  case i n  July o f  1999? 

A July, correct. 

Q And went up u n t i l  December '99 working on the 

f i r s t  conceptual master p l  an? 

A Yes. 

MR. MELSON: Okay. Commissioners, I am handing out a 

copy o f  Nocatee's c e r t i f i c a t e  appl icat ion f i l e d  w i th  the 

Commission on June 1, 1999. This i s  already pa r t  o f  a 

composite exh ib i t  tha t  has been admitted. 

June 1, '99 port ion o f  the f i l i n g  j u s t  f o r  the purposes o f  t h i s  

cross examination. I t ' s  already i n  the record. I forgot there 

was two bundles f u l l  o f  them. 

BY MR. MELSON: 

I ' m  using the 

Q Mr. Mi l l e r ,  would you tu rn  t o  Page 4 o f  t ha t  

appl icat ion? They are numbered a t  the bottom o f  the page. 

A Okay. 

Q And i n  paragraph numbered 6, would you read what it 

says as ind icate the type o f  treatment? 

A 

agreement. 

Q 

"To be provided by JEA pursuant t o  wholesale 

I f  you tu rn  t o  Page 5, and read me Paragraph 5, the 

type o f  treatment f o r  wastewater . 
A 

agreement. " 

"To be provided by JEA pursuant t o  wholesale 
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Q 

A Exhibi t  A? 

Q Yes, s i r .  It follows Page 11. I t ' s  a page o f  tex t .  

Would you turn t o  Exhibi t  A t o  t h i s  document? 

I f  you f i n d  Page 11, and then go t o  the next page, y o u ' l l  be 

there. 

A Okay. 

Q Turn t o  Page 2 o f  t ha t  exhib i t ,  and read t o  yourself, 
i f  you would, the paragraph a t  the top o f  the page, "DDI has 

organized I' 

A Page what? 

Q You are there. 

A Okay. 

Q The f i r s t  f u l l  paragraph. 

A Okay. D D I  - -  

Q 

A Oh, I'm sorry. 

4 
A Okay. 

Q Does tha t  ind icate tha t  a t  the - -  on June 1 s t  o f  '99 

You can j u s t  read i t  t o  yourself - -  

- -  and then I ' m  going t o  ask you a question about it. 

a t  the time t h i s  appl icat ion was f i l e d  there was an ex is t ing  

l e  t e r  o f  i n ten t  w i th  JEA? 

A 

Q 
That appears t o  be, yes. 

I f  you t u r n  t o  the next page, would you agree tha t  

Exhibi t  A - 1  appears t o  be t h a t  l e t t e r  o f  i n t e n t  dated 

Apr i l  1999? 
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A Yes, i t  appears t o  be. 

Q But i t ' s  f a i r  t o  say when you prepared your f i r s t  

conceptual master plan between July and December o f  1999, you 

were unaware that  Nocatee's plan o f  service involved a 

who1 esal e agreement wi th JEA? 

A Based on the information tha t  was provided me, I knew 

tha t  Nocatee was ta l k ing  wi th the JEA, but I had numerous pages 

o f  calculat ions and sketches and analysis showing ex is t ing 

plant s i t e s  on Nocatee t h a t  were provided t o  us through Nocatee 

or England, Thims and M i l l e r .  And t h a t ' s  what I used as my 

i n i t i a l  thrust  t o  develop the f i r s t  report .  

Q When you say "provided t o  you," a l l  the documents 

were provided t o  you by counsel f o r  Intercoastal ;  correct? 

A Yes 

Q And t o  the extent that  they had obtained documents i n  

discovery about prel iminary plans because they had asked f o r  

a l l  preliminary plans, tha t  may have been what you r e l i e d  on 

rather than on the f i l i n g  tha t  was on record wi th  the 

Commission? 

A Possibly so, yes. 

Q Turn t o  your Intervenor testimony, i f  you would, the 

same testimony, Page 7. 

A Okay. 

Q Line 12, you s t a t e ,  "Any u t i l i t y  company providing 

service t o  Nocatee w i l l  be required t o  comply wi th  a l l  
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mind, does tha t  include compliance wi th  the development order 

fo r  the Nocatee development? 

A It would, yes. 

Q And I understand you don' t  have any f i rs thand 

knowledge o f  the process tha t  would be employed t o  change an 

ex is t ing  development order condition; i s  tha t  correct? 

A I don' t  have knowledge o f  the exact process, but I 

know i t  can be changed. 

Q Le t ' s  t u rn  t o  your rebuttal  testimony, Page 3, Line 

25. There i s  a question tha t  asks you t o  respond t o  the 

testimony o f  Mr. M i l l e r  t ha t  the wastewater force mains 

proposed by I C U  are inadequately sized t o  meet the needs o f  the 

f i r s t  phase o f  the development. 

A Yes. 

Q You answered, "It appears tha t  M r .  M i l l e r ' s  statement 

was made p r i o r  t o  reviewing the revised conceptual master 

plan. " Do you see that? 

A Yes. 

Q M r .  M i l l e r ' s  statement was made i n  testimony f i l e d  on 
March 17th; i s  t ha t  correct? 

A I believe so. 

Q And the revised conceptual master plan which shows 

larger mains was f i l e d  on tha t  same date w i th  the Commission; 

i s  tha t  correct? 
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A Yes. 

Q So you're not c r i t i c i z i n g  Mr. M i l l e r  f o r  not knowing 

about somethi ng tha t  hadn ' t been f i 1 ed yet? 

A 

Q 

I ' m  j u s t  making a statement. 

Turn, i f  you would, t o  Page 7 o f  your rebut ta l  

testimony, Lines 17 through 19. And you state tha t  under any 

foreseeable scenario, JEA w i l l  only reuse a f rac t i on  o f  the 

water generated by the Nocatee devel opment whi 1 e Intercoastal 

proposes t o  recycle 100 percent o f  i t s  wastewater flows. Do 

you see tha t  statement? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Would you agree tha t  the Nocatee reuse requirements 

are the same whether tha t  reuse water comes from JEA or  whether 

i t  comes from Intercoastal? 

A Yes. And I believe the statement was made 

incorrect ly.  

actual 1 y, i t  ' s wastewater generated . 
Let me ask t h i s .  

1 was t a l k i n g  about the p lant  f l o w  and not the - -  

Q I believe i t  i s  your opinion tha t  

the e f f luen t  t h a t  JEA discharges t o  the S t .  Johns River from 

i t s  Mandarin plant i s  d i r t i e r  t o  use - -  the only word I can 

th ink o f  r i g h t  now - -  than the wastewater t h a t  Intercoastal 

discharges from i t s  plant;  i s  t ha t  correct? 

1 bel ieve tha t  the requirements fo r  discharge are A 

more str ingent on Intercoastal than they are on the JEA plant,  

which i s  t yp ica l  f o r  most p r iva te  u t i l i t i e s .  
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Q Is tha t  consistent w i th  saying tha t  JEA i s  

discharging a higher level  o f  po l lu tants  than Intercoastal i s  

di  schargi ng? 

A That's saying t h e i r  permit requirements allow them t o  

discharge a t  a higher level  

Q To the extent they, i n  fac t ,  are discharging a higher 

leve l  and the same amount o f  reuse is  going t o  go t o  Nocatee, 

a ren ' t  you pu t t ing  less burden on the environment by recycl ing 

water from Mandarin than you would be by recycl ing water from 

Sawgrass? 

A No. You have a larger f lushing e f fec t  t o  the 

S t .  Johns River versus what you have i n  the Intracoastal 

Waterway. So actual ly  on a QBEL water qua l i t y  analysis, i t  

would be less impact on the Mandarin than it would be on the 

environment around the Intracoastal Waterway. 

Q Turn, i f  you would, t o  your supplemental Intervenor 

testimony, Page 2. 

A Okay. 

Q On Lines 17 through 20, you say you are s t i l l  very 

concerned about some o f  the adverse environmental impact t h a t  

NEWRAP may impose on other areas o f  S t m  Johns County as wel l  as 

Duval County. I mentioned Duval County because, t o  the extent 

tha t  environmental considerations are important, I t h ink  i t  i s  

important t o  remember tha t  the environment does not stop a t  the 

boundaries o f  Nocatee. Do you see that? 
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A Yes. 

Q That's essent ia l ly  one o f  the things you said i n  your 

summary t h i s  morning; i s  t ha t  r i g h t ?  

A Yes 

Q Are you aware tha t  the City Council o f  the City o f  

lacksonvi 11 e approved the devel opment order f o r  Nocatee? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q Is it, therefore, f a i r  t o  say tha t  your concern about 

the export o f  environmental burdens t o  Duval County was not 

shared by the City Council o f  the City o f  Jacksonvil le a t  the 

time they made t h e i r  decision t o  permit or not permit Nocatee 

d i th  the conditions we've been ta l k ing  about a l l  week? 

A The City Council doesn't always r e f l e c t  the concerns 

I f  the people i n  the area. 

Q Do you r e f l e c t  those concerns bet ter  than City 

:ounci 1 does? 

A No, I don' t ,  but I 've t a l  ked t o  several councilmen 

that do. 

Q Turn t o  Page 5 o f  your supplemental Intervenor 

testimony a t  Lines 18 through 19. 

A Okay. 

Q Actual ly, Lines 15 through 18. Before I get t o  tha t  

point ,  do you know what the vote was before the Jacksonvil le 

City Council on the Nocatee development order? 

A I would expect i t  would be 19-0. I f i gu re  i t  was 
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fa i r l y  rubber-stamped. 

Q Let me ask you: On Page 5, the question i s ,  do you 

agree w i th  the testimony o f  Mr. Forrester t o  the extent tha t  i t  

touches upon matters which are also w i th in  your expertise, and 

have you discussed these matters w i th  Mr. Forrester? And says, 

yes, t o  both questions. 

A t  the t i n e  o f  your 

you d i d  not reca l l  spec i f ica l  

vere w i th in  the scope o f  t h i s  

that  a f a i r  statement? 

A That 's correct. 

MR. MELSON: Tha t ' s  
Mr. Mi l l e r .  

Q 
A 

Q 
r~ould ay 

deposition a couple o f  weeks ago, 

y which opinions o f  M r .  Forrester 

answer and which weren't. Is 

a1 1 I 've got. Thank you, 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Menton. 

MR. MENTON: Thank you, M r .  Chairman. 

CROSS EXAM1 NATION 
3Y MR. MENTON: 

Good afternoon, M r  . M i  11 e r  . 
Good afternoon. 

I'll try  not t o  dupl icate M r .  Melson too much. You 

ee tha t  i t  would be a good idea f o r  Intercoastal t o  

explore possible bulk service arrangements as an a l ternat ive t o  

i t s  current plan o f  service proposed i n  t h i s  docket, wouldn't 

you? 

A I ' m  sorry, would you repeat tha t?  
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Q Don't you th ink  i t  would be a good idea f o r  

Intercoastal t o  explore possible bul k service arrangements as 

the plan o f  service tha t  i t  has submitted i n  an a1 ternat ive t o  

t h i s  docket? 

A I th ink 

submitted. I s t i  

proposed i s  s t i l l  

i t  could be an a l ternat ive t o  what they 

1 agree tha t  the plan o f  service tha t  we 

the most cost - e f  f e c t i  ve p l  an. 

Q And i s n ' t  i t  t rue  tha t  i n  each o f  the four d i f f e r e n t  

versions o f  testimony you have submitted i n  t h i s  case, you have 

held out the p o s s i b i l i t y  t ha t  Intercoastal might some day enter 

i n t o  a bulk service arrangement w i th  JEA a t  some point  i n  the 

future? 

A I th ink I indicated tha t  p o s s i b i l i t y ,  tha t  i f  no 

other a l ternat ive were available. 

Q Do you know whether or  not JEA has a refused a 

request from Intercoastal t o  provide such who1 esal e service t o  

I ntercoast a1 ? 

A I couldn' t  t e l l  you fo r  sure, no. 

Q You would agree tha t  a bulk service arrangement from 

JEA would provide some unique benef i ts f o r  t h i s  development, 

though , woul dn I t you? 

A I don' t  see t h a t  the unique benef i ts are any be t te r  

than the benefits o f  Intercoastal Is service, rea l l y .  

Q Okay. Now, you have not ac tua l l y  analyzed whether or 

not a bulk service plan for ICU would be be t te r  than the 
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approach tha t  they propose i n  t h i s  docket, have you? 

A No, I haven't. 

Q And i n  your Intervenor testimony, I believe you hold 

out a couple o f  possible options for bulk service arrangements, 

i ncl udi ng the possi b i  1 i t y  o f  a bul k servi ce arrangement w i th  

S t .  Johns County. Do you reca l l  that? 

A 

Q 

I th ink  I mentioned tha t  i n  my testimony, yes. 

But you would agree tha t  S t .  Johns County i s  not a 

v iable option f o r  bulk service because it has water supply 

probl ems ; correct? 

A 

Q 

I n  some areas o f  S t .  Johns County i t  does, yes. 

And so the only other possible wholesale provider 

tha t  might be able t o  serve the Nocatee development would be 

United Water? 

A 

Q 
United Water i s  a p o s s i b i l i t y .  

But you don ' t  know whether they have the capacity t o  

provide service t o  the Nocatee development? 

A I ' m  not sure about United Water. I also understand 

tha t  they are being pursued by JEA, so I don' t  know what t h e i r  

status i s .  

Q Now, i n  your testimony, you made reference several 

times t o  the JEA Mandarin plant.  Do you reca l l  that? 

A Yes, I did. 

Q And you would agree tha t  the JEA Mandarin p lant  i s  

we1 1 -designed; correct? 
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A I th ink i n  most cases. I th ink we have odor control 

probl ems there . 
Q And your firm actual ly designed the JEA Mandarin 

plant; i s n ' t  t ha t  r i gh t?  

A We designed the  Mandarin p lant  w i t h  exception t o  the 

odor control system which was specif ied by JEA, and we used 

t hei r desi gn . 
Q And you personally were actual ly  involved i n  the 

design o f  the Mandarin plant? 

A I was a project  manager, although 

Mr. Southwell (phonetic) was the pro ject  engineer on the plant. 

Q In f ac t ,  you would agree tha t  the operations o f  JEA 

are going along qui te  well a t  the Mandarin plant? 

A I believe the Mandarin p lant  has operated qui te  wel l .  

I th ink  the odors are pr imar i ly  due t o  the length o f  force 

mains tha t  are coming i n  the Mandarin plant,  because when you 

drive down 295 and past the plant,  the odors are mostly coming 

from vents from the force main. And t h a t ' s  my understanding 

from conversations wi th  the p lant  superintendent. 

Q Have you ever submitted any complaints w i th  respect 

t o  the odor from the Mandarin plant? 

A I l i v e  a t  the beach, so i t  doesn't bother me. 

Q Not i n  Intercoastal t e r r i t o r y ,  I hope. 

A We1 1 , no, I 1 i ve  i n  North Neptune Beach. 

Q Now, you t e s t i f i e d  about the current capacity for 
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JEA's Mandarin plant i s  7.5 MGD; correct? 

A That 's correct. 

Q And you haven't actua l ly  looked a t  the flows from 

JEA' s Mandarin pl ant; correct? 

A I understand from some o f  the operations s t a f f  t ha t  

they are averaging i n  the range o f  6 MGD. 

Q The question, s i r ,  was whether you have ac tua l l y  

looked a t  the f lows from JEA's Mandarin plant. 

A No, I haven't. I ' v e  j u s t  depended on s t a f f  t o  t e l l  

me . 
Q And you would agree tha t  M r .  Perkins would be i n  a 

pos i t ion t o  know what JEA's flows a t  the Mandarin p lan t  would 

be? 

A Certainly. 

Q And do you know what he indicated i n  h i s  testimony 

regarding f lows a t  the Mandarin plant? 

A I don't reca l l  exactly. 

Q Le t ' s  j u s t  assume f o r  purposes o f  t h i s  question tha t  

the current flows a t  Mandarin are i n  the 5 t o  6 MGD range. 

A Okay. 

Q That would ind icate tha t  JEA has a capacity, as we 

s i t  here today, o f  1.5 MGD a t  Mandarin; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q 

Intercoastal i s  u l t imate ly  proposing t o  b u i l d  on the Nocatee 

And i s n ' t  t ha t  the same s ize  as the p lan t  t h a t  
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s i te?  

A That's correct, but Mandarin also has addit ional 

commitments 

Q And you don' t  know what those commitments are, do 

you? 

A No, I don't,  but I know the Mandarin area i s  growing 

rapi d l  y . 
Q And you, as the designer o f  the JEA Mandarin plant,  

would agree tha t  the plant can be eas i ly  expanded up t o  15 MGD; 

correct? 

A The plant was designed f o r  expansion t o  15 MGD by 

basical ly dupl icat ing what's there. 

Q And that  was par t  o f  the or ig ina l  design tha t  you 

did, was t o  have the abi l  i t y  t o  eas i ly  expand i t  up t o  15 MGD? 

A Yes. 

Q And JEA current ly  has the property there t o  do that;  

correct? 

A Yes, i t  w i l l  f i t  on the property. 

Q And do you know whether there are any plans i n  the 

long term f o r  expansion o f  tha t  p lant? 

A That I'm not aware o f .  I do know tha t  i f  they are 

approaching 6 MGD, they are obligated by DEP t o  s t a r t  making 

plans f o r  expansion. 

Q Okay. And do you know whether - - o r  l e t  me t r y  i t  

t h i s  way. You do not know how easy or d i f f i c u l t  i t would be 
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i f  i t  was necessary, do you? 

A 

Q 

t h i s  docket? 

A 

Q H i s  p r e f i l e d  d i rec t  testimony. 

A I believe I looked a t  it. I t ' s  been a while since I 

I th ink  i t  would be very d i f f i c u l t .  

So d id  you review the testimony o f  M r .  Perkins i n  

Which testimony are you refer r ing? 

looked a t  it. 

Q Do you know i f  M r .  Perkins indicated i n  h i s  p r e f i l e d  

d i r e c t  testimony tha t  JEA had the a b i l i t y  t o  eas i l y  d i ve r t  

flows t o  i t s  Ar l ington East wastewater plant? 

A 

Q And you know Mr. Perkins; correct? 

A Oh, yeah. 

Q 

A Yes, s i r .  

Q Okay. And you would agree tha t  M r .  Perkins i s  i n  a 

I couldn' t  t e l l  you i f  i t ' s  i n  there or not. 

And Mr. Perkins i s  a very good engineer? 

be t te r  pos i t ion t o  evaluate whether o r  not JEA had the 

capab i l i t y  o f  d i ve r t i ng  flows t o  i t s  Ar l ington East  p lant ;  

correct? 

A Yes, I agree. 

Q And you do not know what JEA's long-term plans are 

w i th  respect t o  the Ar l ington East plant,  do you? 

A I don' t  know. However, I know t h a t  the distance t o  
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4r l ington East ,  even the distance t o  Mandarin, cause a 

tremendous odor problem, pa r t i cu la r l y  using i n i t i a l l y  oversized 

force mains. 

Q Do you know whether o r  not JEA has any plans t o  

develop systems tha t  would be able t o  d i v e r t  flows i n  e i ther  

direct ion? 

A I couldn't  answer that .  I don ' t  know. 

Q And, again, Mr. Perkins would be i n  a bet ter  pos i t ion  

t o  assess what JEA's capab i l i t ies  a re  i n  tha t  regard? 

A That's correct. 

Q With respect t o  water, you would agree tha t  you have 

not done any study as t o  how JEA's plans t o  interconnect i t s  

North and South Grids might a f fec t  i t s  a b i l i t y  t o  provide water 

service t o  the Nocatee area; correct? 

A I haven't done any recent studies. In the 1968 water 

study, which I was one o f  the pro ject  engineers on, we were 

looking a t  water from the westerly Duval County back then. And 

I do understand there i s  a 48-inch l i n e  tha t  had been awarded 

or under construction across the r i v e r  for raw  water .  There's 

also some ind icat ion there w i l l  be a 30-inch l i n e  put i n  the 

Ortega River next t o  a subaqueous force main we're working on. 

And there's also a 24-inch water  main going t o  Jul ington Creek, 

which I am assuming they are planning t o  serve potable water t o  

Julington Creek rather than using the plants down there, 

although those plants could be expanded too. 
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I do know r i g h t  Nocatee i s  re l y ing  on one 1 ine  t o  

serve Nocatee. Whereby, an on-s i te  p lant  gives you more 

r e l i a b i l i t y ,  because i f  you have tha t  one l i n e  break coming 

down P h i l l i p s  Highway, a 24 or larger l i n e  can ' t  be repaired i n  

10 minutes. You're going t o  have the whole development out o f  

water for a period o f  time. Whereas, i f  you had a p lant  

on-s i te ,  you are able t o  open valves and close valves and 

d i ve r t  f low t o  serve. 

Q Mr. M i l l e r ,  i s n ' t  it correct  tha t  your l a s t  rea l  

system was over 20 involvement w i th  respect t o  the JEA water 

years ago? 

A Yes, I believe so. 

Q So you're not f a m i l i a r ,  as we s 

what i nterconnecti ons have been done w i th  

various water plants tha t  JEA has? 

t here today, w i th  

respect t o  the 

A I ' m  not f a m i l i a r  w i th  a l l  o f  them; however, I do know 

I n  other words, tha t  the l i n e  t o  Nocatee i s  not a looped l i n e .  

you've got a sole source l i n e  coming down U.S.1. 

looped. There's, apparently, some in tent ions t o  loop because 

they've s t i l l  got a large size l i n e  going east i n t o  the 

Intercoastal franchise area. So I assume there i s  some 

in tent ion t o  loop up through the beaches area. 

I t ' s  not 

Q Okay. Do you know whether t h a t  l i n e  coming down t o  

Nocatee i s  connected t o  JEA's g r i d  system? 

A Yes, i t  i s .  
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Q Okay. And the g r i d  system i s  a series o f  

interconnected water plants; i s  t h a t  correct? 

A 

have a section o f  l i n e  tha t  i f  i t ' s  broken or some accident 

happens, you cut o f f  a l l  the water t o  Nocatee. 

It i s  north o f  Nocatee, but coming i n t o  Nocatee, you 

Q Do you know whether o r  not JEA proposes a loop t o  

Nocatee from Jul ington Creek P1 antat ion down Racetrack Road? 

A I haven't seen a proposal f o r  that .  I assume i t  

would be a log ica l  loop a t  some point .  

Q So i f  JEA, i n  fact ,  has plans t o  connect a loop wi th  

the Jul ington Creek Plantation, t ha t  would a l l ev ia te  some o f  

the concerns you j u s t  talked about? 

A 

o f  it. 

Q 

It would a l l ev ia te  some o f  the problems, but not a l l  

Now, you would agree t h a t  there are advantages from 

an engineering standpoint t o  an interconnected system t h a t  t i e s  

together water supply; i s n ' t  t ha t  correct? 

A Oh, de f i n i t e l y .  

Q And you mentioned a minute ago about the e f f o r t s  tha t  

JEA has underway t o  interconnect a t  i t s  North and South Grids? 

A That 's correct. 

Q So you are aware t h a t  there i s  i n  process a 

connection between the South Grid and the North Grid? 

A That's correct, yes. 

Q And i s n ' t  i t  t rue  t h a t  many o f  the wells t h a t  are i n  
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JEA's North Grid are not w i th in  a water use caution area? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s  correct. 

Q And they ' re  i n  an area tha t  has an abundant supply o f  

water tha t  can eas i l y  be provided t o  a1 l ev ia te  resource 

problems i n  other areas w i th in  the network; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, you mentioned a minute ago Mr. Perkins and you 

reviewed the p r e f i l e d  testimony tha t  was submitted by M r .  Ke l l y  

and M r .  Perkins i n  t h i s  docket; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And a t  the time o f  your deposition, the only issues 

tha t  you had w i th  any o f  the statements tha t  were i n  t h e i r  

depositions had t o  do wi th  the local  sources f i r s t  provision; 

i s  tha t  correct? 

A I believe so, yes. 

Q Now, Mr. M i l l e r ,  i s n ' t  i t  correct  t ha t  a t  the time o f  

your deposition when I asked you what was the o r i g i n  or the 

basis fo r  the loca l  sources f i r s t  pol icy,  you d i d n ' t  even know, 

d id  you? 

A We1 1, I knew i t  was i n  one o f  the s tate e i ther  

l eg i s la t i ve  act o r  something. 

i t  was or where i t  came from. 

I d i d n ' t  know exact ly what b i l l  

Q Well, you d i d n ' t  know whether i t  was from the Water 

Management D i s t r i c t  or from the Legislature or - -  
A Well, I don' t  th ink  I indicated. I do know i t  d i d n ' t  
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come from the Water Management D i s t r i c t .  

Q And you've never had a loca l  sources f i r s t  issue come 

up i n  connection wi th  any permits tha t  you've obtained or any 

consul ta t ions wi th  which you have d i r e c t l y  been involved p r i o r  

t o  t h i s  case, have you? 

A No, I haven't. 

Q And you d id  not know whether the loca l  sources f i r s t  

pol i c y  has ever been appl i e d  by any regulatory agency i n  the 

s tate o f  Florida, do you? 

A 

Q 
I ' m  not aware o f  any. 

M r .  M i l l e r ,  I want t o  ask you a couple questions 

about your rebuttal  testimony, i f  you have tha t .  

A Okay. 

Q Now, on Page 7 on Lines 21 and 22 - - I 'm sorry, I may 

have the wrong one here. Bear w i th  me j u s t  a second. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: A l l  r i g h t .  

A All r i gh t .  

Q I'm sorry. I ' m  t a l k i n g  - -  t h i s  i s  your Intervenor 

testimony on Page 7. 

A Okay. 

Q Lines 21 - -  
A Intervenor, I'm sorry. 

Q 

A Okay. 

Q 

Too many testimonies going on here. 

Lines 21  and 22, you are t a l  k ing about why you 
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bel ieve tha t  the Intercoastal plan o f  service i s  bet ter  than 

the Nocatee plan o f  service, I guess. And on Lines 21 and 22, 

you t a l k  about how the Nocatee plan o f  service w i l l  require 

construction or expansion o f  long water, sewer and reuse l i nes  

t o  provide service from these d is tant  treatment f a c i l i t i e s .  Do 

you see that? 

A That's correct. 

Q Now, i s n ' t  it true, i n  fac t ,  t ha t  the water and 

wastewater 1 i nes have a1 ready been i nstal  1 ed down U. S. 1 ri ght 

t o  the point  o f  connection where tha t  t r i a n g l e  i s ?  

A Yes. They have been ins ta l l ed  and, I believe, have 

capacity t o  serve the f i r s t  phase o f  Nocatee. That 's part o f  

the reason they were ins ta l led ,  I believe. 

Q Okay. So t o  the extent here tha t  you are assuming 

tha t  i t  w i l l  require addit ional construction o f  water and sewer 

1 i nes coming down U S 1, tha t  testimony i s incorrect  ; correct? 

A We1 1, i t  would require some future - - f o r  the fu ture 

needs 

Q Now, you have done no analysis as t o  a t  what po int  i n  

time there may be a need f o r  fu ture l i n e s  coming down t h a t  way, 

have you? 

A I haven't done one personally, no. I have seen some 

exhibi ts tha t  showed some future Phase I1 l i nes .  

Q And do you know when those l i n e s  were completed tha t  

are going down U. S. 1 there? 
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A I couldn't tell you exactly. It's been within the 
last eight, ten months, I imagine. 

Q 
compl eted? 

So it's been in the last year that those lines were 

A I believe so. 

Q And you understand that JEA deliberately oversized 
those lines in order to provide service t o  other areas in this 
vicinity that might need it; correct? 

A I understand they were oversized. I assumed it was 
for Nocatee, maybe it was a wrong assumption on my part. 

Q Now, Mr. Miller, you do not know the provisions of 
the agreement between Nocatee U t i  1 i ty Corporati on and JEA with 
respect to cost allocations, do you? 

A I'm not familiar with a17 o f  it. No, I'm not. You 

can give me the cost sharing of lines and things o f  that 
nature 

Q In your Intervenor testimony on Page 6 of Lines 19 to 
2 1  - -  

A Intervenor's? 
Q Intervenor's, yes. 
A What line was that? 
Q Nineteen to 21. 
A Okay. 

Q You indicate here that if JEA is the wholesaler or if 
on-site treatment is provided, Intercoastal will still be the 
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most cos t -e f f i c ien t  provider o f  u t i l i t y  service. Do you see 

that? 

A Yes. 

Q I n  making your determination as t o  who the most 

c o s t - e f f i c i e n t  provider would be, you assumed tha t  Nocatee 

U t i  1 i t y  Corporation would have some responsi b i  1 i t y  f o r  the 

l ines ;  i s n ' t  costs involved coming down the U.S.1 

t ha t  r i g h t ?  

A I made the assumption tha t  

have the same arrangement as JEA - -  

transmission 

Intercoastal U t i  1 i t y  woul d 

s Nocatee ha w i th  JEA. 

Q So a t  the time tha t  you developed your testimony 

here, you were under the assumption tha t  Nocatee U t i l i t y  

Corporation had some responsi bi 1 i t y  f o r  the costs associated 

w i th  those l i nes  coming down U.S.1? 

A Not t o t a l  cost o f  them, no. 

Q But you d i d  assume tha t  they had some respons ib i l i t y  

f o r  some o f  t ha t  cost; correct? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, Mr. Melson asked you a few questions w i th  

respect t o  the Intercoastal a b i l i t y  t o  provide reuse t o  the 

Nocatee development + Do you reca l l  those? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q And j u s t  t o  fo l low up on a couple o f  those. As I 

understood your summary, you indicated tha t  you have made a 

calculat ion tha t  somehow indicates i n  the f i r s t  year the 
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supplement tha t  Intercoastal would need fo r  the reuse needs o f  

Nocatee would be 135,000 gallons per day? 

A That was based j u s t  on the permitted capacity o f  

what ' s discharging versus what ' s requi red by Nocatee, yes. 

Q So you understand tha t  a t  t h i s  po int  the f i r s t  need 

fo r  reuse by Nocatee would be i n  - - we're t a l  k ing probably the 

l a t t e r  par t  o f  2002? 

A That 's correct. 

Q So i n  making your calcu lat ion o f  the s h o r t f a l l  t ha t  

would need t o  be made up o f  135,000 gallons per day, you were 

assuming t h a t  the Intercoastal wastewater treatment p l  ant was 

operating a t  f u l l  capacity a t  the end o f  2002; correct? 

A I made tha t  assumption. I also made the assumption 

tha t  the high - -  using a l l  the high - -  what we consider were 

high project ions f o r  Nocatee assuming tha t  the development i s  

going t o  develop i n  the same scale as l a i d  out i n  the phasing. 

I think we're dealing wi th  a l o t  o f  assumptions. We don ' t  know 

what the actual reuse demand i s  going t o  be, nor do we know 

exactly how fas t  Sawgrass i s  going t o  develop. 

Q So i n  your conceptual p lan tha t  you have here, you 

project  under the normal course o f  events tha t  the Intercoasta 

plant would reach f u l l  capacity i n  the year 2010, but  i n  making 

your determination o f  $135,000 s h o r t f a l l  a t  the beginning o f  

Nocatee, you're assuming i t ' s  going t o  be a t  f u l l  capacity i n  

the year 2002; correct? 
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A That's the way i t ' s  shown, but again, we're dealing 

wi th numerous assumptions. 

Q So i f ,  i n  fact ,  Nocatee - -  I mean, the Intercoastal 

p lant  does not actua l ly  meet f u l l  capacity t o  2002, as you 

ind icate i n  your conceptual plan, then you would agree tha t  the 

sho r t fa l l  f o r  Intercoastal i n  terms o f  i t s  a b i l i t y  t o  provide 

reuse t o  Nocatee woul d be signi  f i  cant1 y greater than 135,000 

you gave i n  your testimony; correct? 

A 

Q 

It could be higher, yes. 

I n  connection w i th  tha t ,  your assumption o f  a 

135,000-gallon sho r t fa l l  a t  the beginning o f  Nocatee assumes 

that  the only obl igat ion tha t  Intercoastal has t o  the Sawgrass 

Country Club i s  300,000 gallons per day; correct? 

A Yes, tha t  i s  my understanding from M r .  Forrester o f  

the agreement w i th  Sawgrass. 

Q And t o  the extent t ha t  Sawgrass i s  ac tua l l y  tak ing 

larger than 300,000 gallons per day, then tha t  would also 

increase the sho r t fa l l  i n  terms o f  Intercoastal ' s  a b i l i t y  t o  

neet the reuse needs o f  Nocatee? 

A Well, as I stated before, i t ' s  my assumption t h a t  

Intercoastal i s  only obl igated t o  300,000 gallons a day. 

Q And t o  the extent t ha t  the Intercoastal f a c i l i t y  has 

ob1 igat ions t o  provide reuse t o  the plantat ions, t ha t  could 

also a f fec t  your ca lcu lat ion i n  terms o f  the reuse s h o r t f a l l  o f  

Vocatee? 
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A I t ' s  my understanding there's no wr i t t en  agreement 

w i th  Plantat ion t o  provide anything other than what 

vo lun ta r i l y  - - tha t  Intercoastal would give them. 

MR. MENTON: No fur ther  questions. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Korn. 

MR. KORN: Thank you, M r .  Chairman. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KORN: 

Q Hello again, Mr. M i l l e r .  

A Hello. 

Q I want t o  fo l low up on something you j u s t  said. You 

said tha t  i n  response t o  M r .  Menton's question t h a t  it was your 

understanding tha t  the only ob l igat ion was 300,000 gallons per 

day t o  the Sawgrass g o l f  course; r i g h t ?  

A 

U t i  1 i ti es . 
That i s  what I have been t o l d  by Intercoastal 

Q And you're not aware - -  j u s t  as you've t e s t i f i e d  

yesterday, you're not aware o f  the actual amounts t h a t  are 

ac tua l l y  being drawn down by Sawgrass County Club for t ha t  g o l f  

course i r r i g a t i o n ?  

A I understand they are drawing down more than tha t ;  

however, I have been t o l d  the obl igat ion i s  only 300,000 

gallons a day. 

Q You have not reviewed a document ca l led  a "Ut i l i t y  

Service Agreement, 'I have you, s i  r? 
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Q I t ' s  dated September 1983. 

A With who, Sawgrass? 

Q 
U t i  1 i t i e s .  

It was them between Arvida and Intercoastal 

A No, I haven't. 

MR. WHARTON: Mr. Chairman, I th ink  t h i s  i s  

the scope o f  e i ther  of the testimonies. 

1146 

outside 

MR. KORN: It i s  cer ta in ly  fo l lowing up on the 

witness's a b i l i t y  o r  i n a b i l i t y  t o  know the basis o f  h i s  

testimony tha t  he has j u s t  given. 

MR. WHARTON: Yeah, but the scope i s  not defined by 

h is  responses t o  questions on cross. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: He's t e s t i f i e d  tha t  he wasn't aware 

o f  any agreement. 

basis o f  an agreement. 

I assume you're t ry ing t o  b r ing  i n  some 

MR. KORN: Mr. Chairman, I'm t r y i n g  t o  understand 

because i t  appears tha t  t h i s  witness ' s testimony and h i s  

assumptions a re  based upon f igures which have been given t o  

him, and I'm trying t o  understand what the basis o f  those 

figures are. And because, qu i te  f rankly,  and I th ink  as i s  

p re t ty  evident, those f igures are i n  d i r e c t  contravention t o  

a l l  the other testimony tha t  we've been hearing throughout t h i s  

hearing wi th  respect t o  the ob1 igat ions t h a t  Intercoastal 

U t i l i t i e s  current ly  has t o  Sawgrass. 
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MR. WHARTON: Well t h a t ' s  a t o t a l l y  incorrect  

characterization o f  the testimony. 

MR. KORN: Well, t h a t ' s  the f i r s t  th ing  we haven't 

agreed on yet i n  t h i s  t r i a l ,  M r .  Wharton. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: As I understand where the 

questioning i s ,  you asked him i f  he was aware o f  tha t  document. 

He i s  not, as 1 understood the response. 

THE WITNESS: 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: So tha t  k ind o f  leaves you where? 

MR. KORN: 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Le t ' s  see where tha t  takes us. 

MR. KORN: Certainly. 

I ' m  not aware o f  the document. 

It leaves me wi th  my next question. 

BY MR. KORN: 

Q Mr. Menton asked you i f  the amount o f  i r r i g a t i o n  t h a t  

Sawgrass was using was greater than 300,000 gal lons per day, 

t h a t  i t  would increase the sho r t fa l l  t h a t  I C U  would have t o  

make up i n  order t o  serve Nocatee. And you said, we1 1 

j u s t  my understanding 300,000. I ' d  l i k e  you t o  answer t h a t  

question. 

than 300,000 gallons per day, i t  would increase the s h o r t f a l l  

t ha t  Intercoastal U t i l i t i e s  would have t o  make up i f  they plan 

t o  serve reuse t o  Nocatee? That's a yes o r  no. 

i t ' s  

I s n ' t  it t rue  tha t  i f  Sawgrass was drawing down more 

A Yes, i f  they had a legal ob l iga t ion  t o  serve more 

than 3,000 (s ic )  gallons a day t o  Sawgrass. 

Q Are you a member o f  the F lor ida Bar? 
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A No, I ' m  not. 

Q Okay. And you haven't seen any contracts tha t  define 

what the legal obl igations o f  any o f  these par t ies are w i th  

respect t o  reuse a t  Sawgrass, are you? 

A No, I have not. 

Q Okay. Now, I want t o ,  i f  I might, d i r e c t  your 

testimony, M r .  M i l l e r  - -  a t tent ion t o  your rebutta 

A Okay. 

Q - -  spec i f i ca l l y  a t  Page 3. And i f  you could j u s t  

read j u s t  t o  yourself the question tha t  begins on Line 9 and 

your answer begins on Line 11 and runs through Line 21, and i f  

you w i l l  t e l l  me when you're done w i th  tha t ,  1 have one 

question t o  ask you. 

A Okay. 

Q Thank you. The question was bas ica l l y  put t o  you as 

t o  whether Intercoastal could meet Nocatee's timetable f o r  

provision o f  construction water by 2001. And f o r  the record, 

what i s  "construction water"? 

A It i s  what Nocatee would require for t h e i r  bu i ld ing  

construction, in f rast ructure construction on- s i t e .  

Q Would t h a t  include construction o f  natural 

improvements such as go1 f courses? 

A I would assume t h a t  the i n i t i a l  g o l f  course would 

require some water, yes. 

Q So t h a t  would be included i n  your de f i n i t i on ,  your 
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worki ng def i n i  t i on? 

A Yes 

Q A l  1 r i g h t .  Now, speci f i c a l  l y  your answer tha t  begins 

a t  Page 14 where you state, "I agree wi th  M r .  Forrester 's 

conclusion tha t  I U  w i l l  e i ther  be able t o  o f f e r  construction 

water by the revis ion o f  temporary f a c i l i t i e s  or i f ,  i n  fac t ,  

the development i s  delayed by permanent f a c i l i t i e s  which w i l l  

be i n  place a t  the t ime construction water i s  demanded," my 

question i s :  What i s  your assumption as t o  the locat ion o f  

those temporary f a c i l i t i e s ?  Where would they be ac tua l l y  

si ted? 

A It would have t o  be some k ind o f  a s i t i n g  agreement 

between Nocatee and Intercoastal U t i  1 i t i e s .  

Q They would not be east o f  the Intracoastal Waterway, 

would it? 

A Well, i f  any reuse was needed or  they needed some 

reuse water f o r  g o l f  course i r r i g a t i o n ,  we could ce r ta in l y  have 

tha t  permitted, I th ink,  i n  t o  meet t h e i r  current schedule. 

What i s  the standard t h a t  i s  required i n  order t o  Q 
provide construction water? In other words, i s  reuse e l i g i b l e  

t o  be used as construction water? 

A I f  i t ' s  f o r  i r r i g a t i o n ,  i t  can be. 

Q What other purposes are construction water put t o  

other than i r r i g a t i o n ?  

A I'm sure you could use i t  f o r  some o f  the road 
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I th ink  i t  construction and spr ink l ing and things l i k e  that .  

dould be up t o  what - - as long as i t  wasn't f o r  potable 

consumption, you could use i t  as long as i t  met the publ ic  

standards . 
Q Does your testimony - -  I'm sorry. I d i d n ' t  mean t o  

cut you o f f .  Are you finished? 

A Yes. 

Q Does your testimony presume tha t  the s i t i n g  o f  

temporary f a c i l i t i e s  would not be located i n  Intercoastal ' s  

current ce r t i f i ca ted  area? 

A Yes, i t  does. 

Q Now, you were asked some questions about the amount 

o f  gal 1 ons per day tha t ,  in your opinion, a go1 f course needed. 

A Yes . 
Q Do you remember tha t  testimony? 

And as I reca l l  your testimony, you said t h a t  you 

thought tha t  Mr. Doug M i l l e r ' s  estimates o f  650,000 gallons per 

day was on the high side, using your words. 

A That's correct. 

Q Were you here f o r  the testimony o f  M r .  James 
yesterday which followed your testimony? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q Did you hear Mr. James's testimony regarding h i s  

estimates as t o  what he thought would be necessary i n  order t o  

appropriately i r r i g a t e  a g o l f  course i n  t h i s  par t  o f  Florida? 
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A Yes . 
Q And d i d  you hear him say tha t  i n  h i s  view a range 

would be anywhere between 550,000 t o  750,000 gallons per day 

f o r  18 holes? 

A Yes, 1 heard that .  

Q Do you disagree w i th  M r .  James's assessment? 

A I disagree somewhat, tha t  on an annual average i t ' s  

not t ha t  high. 

Q Mr. M i l l e r ,  are you aware o f  the current status o f  

development w i th in  the Sawgrass Community? 

A I haven't been i n  - -  no, I ' m  not. I haven't been t o  

Sawgrass i n  a while. 

Q So you're not sure whether tha t  development has been 

b u i l t  out or  anything o f  t ha t  nature? 

A I assume tha t  i t ' s  p re t t y  close t o  b u i l t  out, but I 

couldn't  t e l l  you. 

Q And the purpose o f  your testimony, whether the d i r e c t  

o r  the Intervenor or  rebut ta l  testimony, was not  t o  do any type 

o f  a comparison between odor issues tha t  might e x i s t  a t  JEA's 

Yandarin p lant  and the Intercoastal p lant  adjacent t o  Sawgrass; 

correct? 

A No, i t  wasn't. 

MR. KORN: Thank you, Mr. M i l l e r .  Thank you, 

W. Chairman. I have nothing further.  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : Thank you. S t a f f  . 
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MS. ESPINOZA: Just one question. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 
BY MS. ESPINOZA: 

Q You stated e a r l i e r  i n  response t o  a question asked by 

Commissioner Palecki tha t  i f  Intercoastal could f i n d  a s i t e  

outside the Nocatee area, then the service area would need t o  

be changed. Nhy do you bel ieve tha t  the u t i 1  i t y  service area 

would need t o  be changed i f  the p lant  s i t e  was physical ly 

1 ocated outside the proposed development area? 

A I would assume, and I may be wrong, but i t  would ha\ 

t o  be located i n  the franchise area. 

MS. ESPINOZA: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. Commi ssioners 

Redi rect .  

RED I RECT EXAM I NATION 
BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q Mr. M i l l e r ,  t o  the extent t ha t  t ha t  assumption 

incorrect, would you then agree tha t  t h a t  would expand 

Intercoastal 's  options i n  tha t  regard? 

A Yes. 

i s  

Q Okay. Le t ' s  t a l k  about t h i s  map t ha t  I th ink  ' is  

marked as Exhib i t  42? 

A Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes. 

Q What are those l i g h t  blue areas tha t  ex i s t  w i th in  the 
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devel opment? 

A 

Q 

A 

Labe ed as out parcels. 

What i s  an out parcel? 

It appears t o  be a parcel t ha t  i s  owned by someone 

else, i s  no par t  o f  the developer. 

Q And do you th ink  tha t  Intercoastal would, i f  i t  

deemed it advi sable, investigate whether 1 ocat i  ng water and 

wastewater plant s i t es  on those out parcels would be a 

possi b i  1 i ty? 

A 

Q 
That ce r ta in l y  could be a p o s s i b i l i t y .  

Sir, you were asked qui te  a few questions about the 

I n  fac t ,  locat ion of the wel ls and the spacing o f  the wells. 

Intercoastal would have t o  get a consumptive use permit f o r  

those we1 1 s; correct? 

A That's correct. 

Q So wherever the wells were located, t ha t  would be i n  

a locat ion tha t  the Water Management D i s t r i c t  had blessed? 

A Correct. 

Q You were also asked several questions about the loca l  

Do you agree tha t  on Exhib i t  42 some o f  sources f i r s t  po l icy .  

these wells seem t o  be wi th in  2,000 fee t  o f  the county l i n e ,  a t  

least  one o f  them? 

A Yes. 

Q And would you expect t ha t  loca l  sources f i r s t  issues 

lllrould be worked out w i th  the Water Management D i s t r i c t  while 
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obtai n i  ng the consumptive use permits? 

A 

Q 
I cer ta in ly  th ink i t  would, yes. 

Exhib i t  42 also shows a couple o f  g o l f  course 

i r r i g a t i o n  wells, doesn't it? 

A Yes 

Q And tha t  apparently denotes tha t  when CH2MHi l l  d i d  

t h i s  study, they deemed tha t  the water was sui table f o r  the 

locat ion o f  g o l f  course i r r i g a t i o n  wel ls i n  those locations? 

A Yes 

Q S i r ,  i s n ' t  i t  t rue  tha t  before you f i l e d  the second 

round o f  your testimony tha t  M r .  Melson asked you so much about 

tha t  Intercoastal had obtained documents through discovery from 

DDI  and NUC? 

A Yes. I received qu i te  a b i t  more documentation t o  

use i n  the JM-2 conceptual plan. 

Q Had Intercoastal also engaged i n  discovery w i th  JEA, 

i ncl udi ng pub1 i c records requests? 

A I'm sorry, repeat tha t .  

Q Did Intercoastal also get documents from JEA during 

that  same period? 

A Yes. 

Q And a t  the time t h a t  you f i l e d  tha t  second round o f  

testimony, do you - -  I th ink  M r .  Melson pointed out t o  you tha t  

there was a l e t t e r  o f  agreement o r  a l e t t e r  o f  i n ten t  i n  the 

application? 
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A Yes, t h a t ' s  what he indicated. 

Q So a t  tha t  time, tha t  was only a l e t t e r  o f  i n ten t  

rather than the contract tha t  those part ies have entered i n t o  

now; i s  tha t  r i gh t?  

A Yes, t h a t ' s  my understanding. 

Q Do you know whether t h a t  l e t t e r  o f  i n ten t  said tha t  

JEA and NUC would actual ly  get together and do the contract i f  

NUC got a c e r t i  f i cate from the Pub1 i c Servi ce Commi ss i  on? 

A I honestly don ' t  reca l l .  

Q You were asked whether Intercoastal,  f o r  lack o f  a 

bet ter  phrase, intended t o  comply w i th  the development order. 

Do you believe Intercoastal would attempt t o  comply w i th  the 

devel opment order i n  a1 1 respects? 

A 

Q But development orders can be modified, can ' t  they? 

A Certainly. 

Q 

I th ink  Intercoastal would t r y  t o  comply w i th  it. 

You were asked several questions about the q u a l i t y  o f  

the e f f luen t  from the Mandarin p lant .  Have you heard testimony 

i n  t h i s  proceeding tha t  has indicated t o  you tha t  the e f f l uen t  

tha t  w i l l  be delivered t o  Nocatee must meet pub l i c  access 
standards? 

A I f  i t ' s  going t o  be used f o r  reuse, i t ' s  got t o  meet 

pub1 i c access standards. 

Q Do you understand t h a t  everything coming out o f  the 

Mandarin p lant  now meets tha t  standard? 
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A When the additional u l t r a v i o l e t  d is in fec t ion  i s  put 

i n  and the reuse expansion i s  f inished, i t  would meet it, yes. 

S i r ,  you were asked some questions about the vote o f  

the City o f  Jacksonville w i th  regard t o  the development order. 

Does the City o f  Jacksonville have a vested i n te res t ,  t o  your 

knowl edge, i n  JEA expandi ng i t s  servi ce t e r r i t o r y ?  

A 

Q 

I cer ta in ly  would th ink  so. 

MR. MENTON: I ' m  going t o  object. This i s  going 

beyond the scope o f  anything t h a t ' s  r e a l l y  relevant t o  t h i s  

proceeding a t  t h i s  time. 

MR. WHARTON: You know, everything i n  t h i s  case i s  

three on one, and they c l e a r l y  asked t h i s  man about what he 

thought about what the City Council - - did he speak bet ter  f o r  

the people o f  Mandarin than City Council, wasn't the vote 19 t o  

nothing. Let's a t  least  put on the record t h a t  they make money 

from tha t  19-to-nothing vote. 

MR. MENTON: What Mr. Wharton i s  asking t h i s  witness 

t o  do i s  t o  t a l k  about what the re la t ionship i s  between the 

City o f  Jacksonvil le and JEA. This witness does not work for 
either o f  them. He i s  not the person who can t e s t i f y  w i th  

d i  r ec t  knowl edge regardi ng those t h i  ngs . 
MR. WHARTON: I don ' t  work f o r  the City o f  

Tallahassee, but I know they b u i l t  the so f tba l l  f i e l d  for the 

el ect r  i c revenue. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Well, as i t  re la tes  t o  t h i s  
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proceeding, l e t ' s  keep i t  t o  h i s  knowledge o f  exact ly what he 

observed regarding those, not what he may have heard. 

BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q M r .  M i l l e r ,  has i t  ever been your observation tha t  

the City o f  Jacksonville makes money o f f  o f  the Jacksonvil le 

E l e c t r i c  Authority? 

MR. MENTON: I'm going t o  renew my objection again. 

I l i s tened t o  him t a l k  about newspaper a r t i c l e s  tha t  have some 

undefined time without objection, but t h i s  i s  r e a l l y  ge t t ing  

him t o  t r y  t o  speculate i n t o  areas tha t  he i s  not the person 

who can t e s t i f y  to .  He's j u s t  t a l k ing  about "Joe Cit izen" 

here. We've been here f o r  three days, and we don ' t  need t o  

hear what t h i s  man thinks about the City o f  Jacksonvi l le 's 

arrangements - -  

MR. WHARTON: He wasn't "Joe Cit izen" when he was 

being asked about what the vote was from the 19-member City o f  

Jacksonvil le Council on the development order. He was 

apparent1 y somebody e l  se . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I'll sustain the objection. 

BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q Have you t a l  ked t o  councilmen i n  Duval County about 

the Mandarin p lant  and the s i t ua t i on  there? 

A 

Q Why don' t  you t e l l  us about those? 

A Well, i n  my - -  

I ' v e  had some discussions on a couple o f  occasions. 
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MR. MENTON: 

grounds. We're trying t o  get i n t o  hearsay comments o f  unknown 

commissioners regarding a plant t h a t ' s  not the issue before 

t h i  s Commission today. 

I ' m  going t o  object on the hearsay 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We had testimony from M r .  M i l l e r  on 
t h i s  by h i s  conversations wi th  - -  and experiences wi th  County 

Lommissioners, so I w i l l  al low it. 

BY MR. WHARTON: 

Q Go ahead. 

A Just i n  summary, I've had conversations w i th  a couple 

o f  the councilmen who - -  one o f  them i s  a d i s t r i c t  councilman, 

the other one i s  a councilman a t  large, and they had concern 

that  Nocatee was drawing from the resources o f  Duval County. 

But I th ink based - -  you know, I th ink  they f e l t  - -  or they 

indicated t o  me they f e l t  l i k e  Nocatee was good for the whole 

area and d i d n ' t  feel  l i k e  i t  was worthwhile pu t t i ng  on a f i g h t  

a t  City Council t o  defend t h e i r  points. And t h a t ' s  bas ica l l y  

what I 've been to1 d. 

Q S i r ,  you were asked several questions about the 

po ten t i a l i t y  f o r  the receipt  o f  bulk service from JEA by 

Intercoastal . Do you reca l l  those? 

A Yes. 

Q Would you advise Intercoastal , 

c e r t i f i c a t e  i n  t h i s  case, t o  a t  least  exp 

i t  was f i n a l i z i n g  i t s  plans? 

f it were awarded the 

ore t ha t  option whi le 
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A I th ink  i t  would be worthwhile exploring it. I ' m  not 

sure i n  1 ieu  o f  the Intercoastal ' s  plan of  service tha t  i t ' s  

the best route t o  go, but i t  may be - - t o  expedite development 

and not have t o  change development orders, i t  may be the only 

way something l i k e  t h i s  could be resolved. 

Q S i r ,  when you were responding t o  a question about 

odors a t  the Mandarin plant,  you commented upon the length o f  

the force main as being a t  least  a p a r t i a l  cause o f  those 

odors. Do you reca l l  tha t  testimony? 

A Yes 

Q Would you expect service from the Mandarin p lant  t o  

the Nocatee development t o  exacerbate tha t  problem? 

A It ce r ta in l y  wouldn't improvement it. I mean, the 

length o f  the force main from Nocatee i s  ce r ta in l y  as long o r  

longer than some o f  the ones coming i n t o  Mandarin now. And 

pa r t i cu la r l y  when you have an oversized force main w i th  i n i t i a l  

lower flows, you can get much longer re tent ion t ime  i n  the 

force main causing the hydrogen su l f i de  odors. And i t ' s  a 

problem tha t  always occurs when you have a - -  t rave l ing  sewage 

over a long distance. 

Q And would you say tha t  t ha t  s i t ua t i on  would be 

exacerbated even fur ther  i f  tha t  sewage was sent t o  the 

A r l  i ngton East p l  ant? 

A Well, i t  would be i f  it was sent d i r e c t l y  t o  the 

Arlington East.  There a re  cer ta in  ways tha t  you could s h i f t  
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f low around, and you'd s t i l l  be stuck w i th  the odor from the 

distance from Nocatee t o  the Mandarin. 

Q You were asked qui te  a few questions about JEA's 

plans as they re la te  t o  S t .  Johns County. Are a l l  o f  JEA's 

wells i n  Duval County, or  i s  JEA operating some wel ls i n  

S t .  Johns County now? 

A Well, i t ' s  my understanding they operate wel ls a t  

Jul ington Creek P1 antation. 

Q And t h a t ' s  i n  S t .  Johns County? 

A 

Q And t h a t ' s  i n  S t .  Johns County? 

A Yes, i t  i s .  

Q Okay. And you had indicated tha t  there i s  a 

I do believe t h a t ' s  under a separate CUP. 

waterl ine  being constructed down t o  Jul ington Creek P1 antation; 

correct? 

A I t ' s  my understanding through what was published as 

an RFP t o  d i f f e ren t  engineers t h a t  there 's  a 24-inch potable 

waterl ine t o  Jul ington Creek, which indicates one o f  two 

things: That Jul ington Creek i s  going t o  be i n t e r t i e d  and 

continue t o  operate the ex i s t i ng  p lant  a t  Jul ington Creek, or  

the Julington Creek p lant  i s  going t o  be abandoned and supply 

a l l  the water from the north. 

Q And would i t  be your assumption tha t  i f  we heard 

testimony from the Water Management D i s t r i c t  t h a t  JEA i s  going 

t o  have t o  s a t i s f y  cer ta in  c r i t e r i a  i n  order t o  have permission 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1161 

t o  de l iver  water i n t o  S t .  Johns County through the f a c i l i t i e s  

they have constructed along U . S . l ,  they are going t o  have t o  

have tha t  same permission t o  de l iver  i t  through the 24-inch 

water main tha t  you have t e s t i f i e d  about? 

MR. MENTON: Excuse me, j u s t  a second, M r .  Chairman. 

I'm going t o  object t o  the question. 

it, f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  and second, I th ink  i t  c a l l s  - -  i f  1 

understood i t  correct ly,  I believe i t  c a l l s  from speculation 

from t h i s  witness as t o  what the Water Management D i s t r i c t  may 

do. 

I ' m  not sure I understood 

MR. WHARTON: I ' m  asking f o r  h i s  professional opinion 

i n  terms o f  what he would ant ic ipate the Water Management 

D i s t r i c t  would do. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: It sounds 1 i ke - - 
MR. MENTON: So you're asking for  h i s  profession - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Excuse me. It sounds 1 i ke 

speculation, a very speculative answer as t o  what he would 

on a hypothetical th ink the Water Management D i s t r i c t  would do 

s i  t u a t i  on. 

BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q Do you know whether or not JEA w i l  be able t o  

del iver water t o  Jul ington Creek through the 24-inch water main 

tha t  you've t e s t i f i e d  about without n o t i f y i n g  the Water 

Management D i s t r i c t  i f  tha t  i s  not an area t h a t  they had 

previously indicated when they applied f o r  t h a t  CUP tha t  they 
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were going t o  be serving? 

A I t ' s  my understanding tha t  the Jul ington Creek 

Plantat ion i s  under a separate CUP. And t o  my knowledge, tha t  

CUP probably could remain as a separate CUP u n t i l  the next 

modifications t o  the JEA South Grid CUP. So they could, I 

th ink ,  essent ia l ly  serve Jul ington without no t i f y i ng  the Water 

Management D i s t r i c t  o r  ge t t ing  a modif icat ion t o  the permit. 

S i r ,  again, you were asked several questions about Q 
JEA's intent ions wi th  regard t o  S t .  Johns County; i s  tha t  

r i gh t?  

A Yes . 
Q And you understand tha t  there are cer ta in  l i nes  tha t  

are proposed t o  be run through the northern pa r t  o f  the Nocatee 

development which u l t imate ly  JEA w i l l  own; i s  t ha t  correct? 

A Yes 

Q And d i d  you hear the testimony o f  JEA, why they said 

they wanted those 1 i nes? 

A It was ant ic ipat ing fu ture service, fu ture 

connections i n  tha t  area. 

Q And some o f  t ha t  service might be east o f  the 

Intracoastal Waterway? 

A Yes, it could be. 

MR. MENTON: Mr. Chairman, I hate t h a t  object again, 

but I do believe we are ge t t i ng  beyond the scope o f  cross now 
because I don' t  th ink  there was any cross examination questions 
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regarding service t o  the east o f  the Intracoastal Waterway. 

MR. WHARTON: We1 1, there were extensive questions 

about JEA's loop systems and JEA's intent ions i n  S t .  Johns 

County. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We1 1 , i t  sounds 1 i ke he answered 

that  l a s t  question already. Do you have fur ther  i nqu i r y  on 

that? 

MR. WHARTON: Yes. Well, I mean, why don ' t  we get t o  

that  questi on? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes, l e t ' s  get t o  i t  and go from 

there. 

MR. MENTON: I ' 1  1 make my objection i n  advance. 

BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q Would you agree, M r .  M i l l e r ,  tha t  i n  t h a t  case JEA's 

f a c i l i t i e s  when they e x i t  the eastern par t  o f  the Nocatee 

development w i l l  be going across property t h a t  i s  not pa r t  o f  

Noca tee? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Before you answer tha t ,  you had an 

objection. Restate it. 

MR. MENTON: Well, I have several. F i r s t ,  I believe 

i t ' s  beyond the scope o f  cross. Second, I bel ieve the question 

i t s e l f  was leading. And t h i r d ,  I th ink  i t ' s  not  relevant i n  

terms of t h i s  witness's speculation as t o  what JEA might be 

intending i n  terms o f  oversizing 1 ines, e t  cetera. 

MR. WHARTON: Well, I t e l l  you what, I can make i t  i n  
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a way tha t  i s  not leading and tha t  doesn't re fe r  t o  JEA. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: It s t i l l  doesn't go t o  the 

re1 evancy. What about the relevancy? 

MR. WHARTON: Well, I th ink  what t h i s  witness i s  

going t o  eas i l y  be able t o  show and tha t  i s  w i th in  the scope o f  

the p r i o r  cross examination i s  t ha t  JEA i s  going t o  be locat ing 

f a c i l i t i e s  on and get t ing easements from the property t h a t ' s  

been described as " that  i t  would be impossible f o r  Intercoastal 

t o  do tha t .  I' 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Le t ' s  hear your question. 

BY MR. WHARTON : 

Q S i r ,  i f  a hypothetical u t i l i t y  was going t o  provide 

service from the Nocatee development t o  areas east o f  the 

Intracoastal Waterway, do you th ink  they would have t o  procure 

easements from land which i s  outside the Nocatee development? 

MR. MENTON: I'll t o  the object t o  the extent i t  

c a l l  s for specul a t ion  . 

A 

Q 
1 and? 

A 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I'll allow it. 

I th ink  some easements would be required, yes. 

And t h a t  then f a c i l i t i e s  would be located or) t ha t  

Yes . 
MR. WHARTON: That 's a l l  we have. 

MR. MELSON: M r .  Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Yes. 
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MR. MELSON: I m sorry. I would 1 i ke one recross on 

the map, j u s t  one. He asked a question w i th  regard t o  the out 

3arcel s, and t h i s  witness - - I want t o  ask one question t o  t e s t  

Tis knowledge o f  those out parcels. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

MR. MELSON: We're done. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS : You ' r e  done . 
MR. WHARTON: They already had three shots a t  him. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: 

I assume none o f  your witnesses - - 

I have t o  question because i t  was 

your map, and he knew nothing about i t  u n t i l  he saw it. 

MR. MELSON: Let me ask the question, and i f  i t  draws 

an objection - - 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: A very narrow question. 

MR. WHARTON: 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We're breaking new ground here on 

I '1  1 make my objection i n  advance. 

the pract ice o f  l a w  anyway. 

RECROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. MELSON: 

Q M r .  M i l l e r ,  i f  I were t o  ask you which o f  these out 

parcels was wetlands, which was s ing le f a m i l y  homes, which was 

a county park, and which was a spoi l  s i t e  for dredging from the 

Intracoastal Waterway, would you know? 

A I couldn' t  t e l l  from t h i s  map. 

MR. MELSON: Thank you. 

(Witness excused. 
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Exhibits. 

1, I want t o  fo l low up and say which 

o f  them i s  a perfect  u t i l i t y  s i t e .  I guess - - 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I appreciate it. 

MR. WHARTON: I think we've already moved them. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: That's 42; r i gh t?  

MR. MELSON: I move 42. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without objection, show tha t  

admitted. We'l l  take a ten-minute break. 
(Exhibi t  42 admitted i n t o  the record. ) 

(Br ie f  recess.) 
(Transcript continues i n  sequence with Vol ume 8. ) 
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